
MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The City of Sweet Home will work to build an economically strong community with an efficient and effective local 
government that will provide infrastructure and essential services to the citizens we serve. As efficient stewards of 
the valuable assets available, we will be responsive to the community while planning and preparing for the future. 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, 
advanced notice is requested by notifying the City Manager’s Office at 541-367-8969. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
         

CITY OF SWEET HOME  
CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA   
August 27, 2019, 6:30 p.m. 
Sweet Home City Hall, 3225 Main Street 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 

 
 PLEASE silence all cell phones – Anyone who wishes to speak, please sign in. 
 
A. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
B. Roll Call:             

Councilor Coleman   Mayor Mahler  
   Councilor Gerson   Councilor Nash  
   Councilor Goble   Councilor Trask 
   Councilor Gourley 

 
C. Consent Agenda: 

a) Approval of Minutes: August 13, 2019 City Council Minutes (pg. 3-5) 
                                  August 13, 2019 Admin, Finance & Property Minutes (pg. 6) 

b) Request for Council Action – Appointment to the Library Board (pg. 7-9) 
c) Request for Council Action – Appointment to the Park Board (pg. 10-12) 
d) OLCC Change of Ownership – Foster Lake Market #1 (pg. 13-19) 

                                             
D. Recognition of Visitors and Hearing of Petitions: 
 
E. Old Business: 

 
a) ATV/UTV Discussion Only (pg. 20-24) 
b) Livability Discussion Only (pg. 25-66) 
c) Noise Ordinance Discussion Only (pg.67-95) 
d) Public Peace, Safety, Health Property and Welfare Ordinance Discussion Only (pg. 96-

102) 
e) Information Only – Regional Biosolids Composting Program (pg. 103) 

 
F. New Business: 

a) Request for Council Action – IGA Peer Court (pg.104-113) 
b) Request for Council Action - Resolution No. 22 for 2019 – A Resolution Adopting a 

Supplemental Budget for the Project and Equipment Reserve Fund (pg. 114-116)  
c) Information Only – Resolution No. 23 for 2019 – A Resolution Adopting a Supplemental 

Budget for the Building Reserve Fund (pg.117-129) 
d) Request for Council Action – Resolution No. 24 for 2019 – A Resolution Authorizing Staff 

to Submit an Application for the 2019 CDBG and Authorize the City Manager to Execute 
a Contract with Willamette Neighborhood Housing Services as Sub-Grantee (pg.130-132) 

WIFI Passcode: 
guestwifi 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 1



MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The City of Sweet Home will work to build an economically strong community with an efficient and effective local 
government that will provide infrastructure and essential services to the citizens we serve. As efficient stewards of 
the valuable assets available, we will be responsive to the community while planning and preparing for the future. 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, 
advanced notice is requested by notifying the City Manager’s Office at 541-367-8969. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
G. Ordinance Bills 

i. Introduction and Request for Ordinance  
ii. First Reading of Ordinance Bills  
iii. Second Reading of Ordinance Bills 
iv. Third Reading of Ordinance Bills (Roll Call Vote Required) 

 
H. Reports of Committees: 

Administrative & Finance/Property  Goble 

Park and Tree Committee  Trask 

Youth Advisory Council Gourley 

Chamber of Commerce Gerson 

Council of Governments  Gerson 

Area Commission on Transportation Mahler 

Solid Waste Advisory Council Goble 

Ad Hoc Committee on Health  Gourley 

Legislative Committee – Written Report (pg. 133-134) Coleman 

 
I. Reports of City Officials:  

a) Mayor’s Report 
b) City Manager’s Report 
c) Department Director’s Reports: (1st Meeting of the Month) 

i. Library Services Director 
ii. Community and Economic Development Director  
iii. Public Works Director 

d) Department Director’s Reports: (2ndt Meeting of the Month) 
i. Finance Director  

(1) Department Report (pg. 135-136) 
(2) Checks by Date (pg. 137-140) 
(3) Monthly Revenue vs. Expenses (pg. 141) 

ii. Police Chief 
(1) Department Statistics (pg. 142-145) 
(2) Oregon Jamboree Statistics (pg. 146-147) 
(3) Jamboree Weekend Arrests (pg. 148) 
(4) Downtown Traffic Memo (pg. 149-150) 

iii. City Attorney’s Report  
 
J. Council Business for Good of the Order: 
 
K. Adjournment  

 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 2



 

P a g e  - 1 - | 3 
 

SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
August 13, 2019 

 

Mayor Mahler called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. in the Sweet Home City Hall. The Pledge of 

Allegiance was recited. 

 

Staff Present: City Manager Ray Towry, City Attorney Robert Snyder, Public Works Director Greg 

Springman, Finance Director Brandon Neish, Police Chief Jeff Lynn, and Community and Economic 

Development Director Blair Larsen. 

 

Visitors Registered to Speak:  Lana Holden 

 

Media: Sean Morgan, The New Era and Alex Paul, Albany Democrat Herald 

             

Roll Call: Councilor Coleman AB  Mayor Mahler             P 

  Councilor Gerson P  Councilor Nash P    

  Councilor Goble P  Councilor  Trask P    

  Councilor Gourley P 

 

Motion to excuse Councilor Coleman (Gerson/Goble) Motion passed with 6 Ayes, 0 Opposed and 1 

Absent (Coleman). 

 

Consent Agenda: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recognition of Visitors & Hearing 

of Petition: 

 

 

Old Business: 

 

Request for Council Action – 

Chamber of Commerce Contract 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motion was made to approve the Consent Agenda as 

submitted (Gerson/Goble). Motion passed with 6 Ayes, 0 

Opposed, 1 Absent (Coleman). 

 

Items on the consent agenda are as follows: 

Approval of Minutes:  July 27, 2019 City Council Meeting 

                                   

                                

Lana Holder addressed the Council on the South Hills Trail tree 

removal. 

                                      

 

 

City Manager Towry presented the Chamber of Commerce 

Operating Contract to the Council for Approval.  There were 

questions from the Council regarding reporting. 

 

Motion to approve the Chamber of Commerce Contract for the 

Operation of a Visitors Center (Gerson/Goble)  

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Councilor Gourley 

Mayor Mahler 

Councilor Nash 

Councilor Trask 

Councilor Coleman 

Councilor Gerson 

Councilor Goble 

 

Motion passed with 6 Ayes, 0 Opposed and 1 Absent (Coleman) 

 

Aye 

Aye 

Aye 

Aye 

Absent 

Aye 

Aye 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 3



 

P a g e  - 2 - | 3 
 

 

Water and Wastewater Treatment 

Plant Update 

 

 

 

 

 

New Business: 

 

Request for Council Action – 

Out of State Travel Request 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Request for Council Action and 

First Reading of Ordinance Bills: 

 

Second Reading: 

 

Third and Final Reading of 

Ordinance Bills: 

  

 

Public Works Director Springman gave the Council an update on 

progress after Council rejected the Jacobs contact and directed 

staff to report back within 30 days on other options for treatment of 

water or wastewater.   His presentation included background 

information and options including: renegotiate or terminate the 

contract with Jacobs.  A Work session will be scheduled for further 

discussion. 

 

 

Public Works Director Greg Springman requested permission from 

the Council to send Utility Manager Steven Haney and Engineer 

Tech Trish Rice to Chicago to look at components for the upgrade 

of the Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 

Motion to approve Out of State Travel for Utility Manager 

Steven Haney and Engineer Tech Trish Rice (Gourley/Gerson) 

Motion passed with 6 Ayes, 0 Opposed and 1 Absent 

(Coleman). 

 

 

None 

 

None 

 

 

None 

  

Reports of Committees: 

 

Administration & Finance/ 

Property Committee 

 

Park & Tree Commission 

 

Youth Advisory Council 

 

 

Chamber of Commerce 

 

Council of Governments (COG) 

 

 

 

Councilor Goble reported the committee met to interview for vacant 

positions on two boards. 

 

No Report 

 

Councilor Gourley reported the YAC’s Leadership Summit event 

went well. 

 

No Report 

 

No Report 

Area Commission on Transportation  

 

Solid Waste Advisory Council 

(SWAC) 

 

Ad Hoc Committee on Health 

 

Legislative Committee 

No Report 

 

No Report 

 

 

Councilor Gourley reported the Health Fair is this weekend. 

 

No Report 

 

 

Reports of City officials 

 

 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 4



 

P a g e  - 3 - | 3 
 

 

Mayor’s Report  

 

 

City Manager’s Report 

 

 

 

 

 

Department Directors Reports 

 

 

 

 

City Attorney 

 

Council Business for Good of the 

Order: 

 

Adjournment: 

 

Mayor Mahler thanked the Chamber for an excellent Sportsman 

Holiday event and the Public Works crew for their support. 

 

City Manager Towry gave an update on moving to the new City Hall. 

Public Works crews were recognized for their efforts and Finance 

Director Brandon Neish was noted for saving the City significant 

funds by acting as IT subcontractor.  City Manager Towry reported 

he will be out of the office August 15th and August 16th.  

 

Written reports were submitted by the following Departments:  

Library, Community and Economic Development and Public Works.  

There was a question from the Council regarding Code Enforcement 

and complaints of people living in RVs. 

 

No Report. 

 

There was a brief discussion on the art hangers in City Hall. 

 

 

With no further business the meeting adjourned at 7:35 pm. 

  

  

  

The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council at the August 13, 2019 regular City 

Council Meeting. 

 

 

               

                        Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

              

City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 5



 

 

  
SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 

ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
 

August 13, 2019 
 
The meeting of the Administration and Finance Committee was called to order at 6:00 p.m. in the 
Sweet Home City Hall.   
 
Staff Present: City Manager Ray Towry 
 
Registered Visitors: None 
 
Media: None 
 

Committee Members: Councilor Goble, Chair (P), Councilor Gerson (AB), Councilor Trask (P)   
             
The purpose of the Administration and Finance Committee meeting was to interview for vacancies 
for the Park and Tree Committee (James Curtis) and the Library Advisory Board (Brittany Donnell). 
 
The Committee will make their recommendations to the City Council for appointments during the 
August 27, 2019 meeting. 
 
With no further business the meeting adjourned at 6:20 p.m. 
 
The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council Administration and Finance 
meeting on August 13, 2019 
 
 
_____________________________  _____________________________ 
City Manager Ray Towry                                    Chairman James Goble 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 6



 

REQUEST FOR  
COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA:  
August 27, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Julie Fisher, Admin Assist 
REVIEWED:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 
 
RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
 

TITLE: Library Advisory Board 
Appointment 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Application submitted for the 
position of Library Advisory Board. 
 
TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
     RESOLUTION 
 X   MOTION 
      OTHER 

 
PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:  Appointment to the Library Advisory Board. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT: There is currently one vacancy on the Library Advisory Board.  
Brittany Donnell has applied for appointment for this board.  The Administration, Finance, and 
Property Committee conducted an interview on August 13, 2019.  They unamiously 
recommended that Ms. Donnell be appointed to the Library Advisory Board for a four year term. 
     
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:   Vacancy on the Library Advisory Board. 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

● City of Sweet Home Staff – Staff benefits by having full comittees that provide direction 
and recommendations that are consistent with law. 

● City of Sweet Home Management - Management is more effective and efficient with 
clear, updated, best practices for policy as recommended by committees. 

● Sweet Home Residents – Residents and taxpayers essentially pay the price when 
policies lead to inefficient operations or practices. 

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 

1. None Known 
 

ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: Appoint committee members to vacancies who are 
willing to serve a full term and available for scheduled meetings of the committee. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing 
2. Seek Additional Applicants 
3. Make a Motion to appoint Brittany Donnell to the Sweet Home Library Advisory Board for 

a four year term to expire December 31, 2022. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1.Option #3 - Make a Motion to appoint Brittany Donnell to the Sweet Home Library Advisory 
Board for a four year term to expire December 31, 2022. 

 
 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 7



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 8



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 9



 

REQUEST FOR  
COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA:  
August 27, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Julie Fisher, Admin Assist 
REVIEWED:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 
 
RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
 

TITLE: Park and Tree Committee 
Appointment 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Application submitted for the 
position of Park and Tree 
Committee. 
 
TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
     RESOLUTION 
 X   MOTION 
      OTHER 

 
PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:  Appointment to the Park and Tree Commission. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT: There is currently one vacancy on the Park and Tree Committee.  
James Curtis has applied for appointment for this board.  The Administration, Finance, and 
Property Committee conducted an interview on August 13, 2019.  They unamiously 
recommended that Mr. Curtis be appointed to the Park and Tree Committee for a four year 
term. 
     
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:   Vacancy on the Park and Tree Committee. 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

● City of Sweet Home Staff – Staff benefits by having full comittees that provide direction 
and recommendations that are consistent with law. 

● City of Sweet Home Management - Management is more effective and efficient with 
clear, updated, best practices for policy as recommended by committees. 

● Sweet Home Residents – Residents and taxpayers essentially pay the price when 
policies lead to inefficient operations or practices. 

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 

1. None Known 
 

ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: Appoint committee members to vacancies who are 
willing to serve a full term and available for scheduled meetings of the committee. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing 
2. Seek Additional Applicants 
3. Make a Motion to appoint James Curtis to the Sweet Home Park and Tree Committee 

for a four year term to expire December 31, 2022. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1.Option #3 - Make a Motion to appoint James Curtis to the Sweet Home Park and Tree 
Committee for a four year term to expire December 31, 2022. 

 
 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 10



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 11



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 12



1 

 

REQUEST FOR  
COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
August 27th, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Jeff Lynn, Chief of Police 
REVIEWED BY: 
R. Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
OLCC Change of Ownership 
ATTACHMENTS:   
OLCC Application 

TYPE OF ACTION: 

      RESOLUTION 

       MOTION 

       OTHER 

 
RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
ORS 471.166 

 
TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
4: Economic Strength 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:  Foster Lake Market #1 is changing ownership and the 
new owner, Sudip Lamichhane, has applied for an “Off-Premises” liquor license. The 
location of the business is 5401 Highway 20, Sweet Home. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:  The Sweet Home Police Department is tasked with 
reviewing applications for liquor licenses that are within the City Limits of Sweet Home. 
Foster Lake Market #1is changing ownership. As with any change of ownership, the 
new owner must apply for a Liquor License through the Oregon Liquor Control 
Commission under their name. The new owner, Sudip Lamichhane, has applied for an 
Off-Premises liquor license. This type of license allows beer and wine to be sold for off 
premises consumption only. This type of license is appropriate for this type of business.  

The Police Department received this investigation during the first part of August 2019 
and has conducted an investigation into this request. As part of the investigation the 
new owner was contacted. The business will maintain its existing methods of operation 
and staff. Mr. Lamichhane indicated that he does have experience managing locations 
that sell alcohol.  

Based upon review of the investigation I found no reason to recommend denial to the 
Sweet Home City Council.  

STAKEHOLDERS:   
● Foster Lake Market #1 - A liquor license and the ability to sell beer and wine as 

part of a convenience store business.  
● Citizens/Community – Foster Lake Market #1 creates additional opportunities 

and choices for the community.  
 

ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 

• Denial of an OLCC liquor license would have a negative impact on sales for 
Foster Lake Market #1. 

• There are no known or anticipated financial impacts for the Sweet Home Police 
Department or the City of Sweet Home.  
 

 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 13



2 

 

OPTIONS: 
1. Do Nothing.  
2. Direct further investigation prior to City’s recommendation 
3. Make a motion that the City of Sweet Home recommends an OLCC license be 

granted to Foster Lake Market #1.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends option #3 - Make a motion that the City of Sweet Home 
recommends an OLCC license be granted to Foster Lake Market #1.   

 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 14



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 15



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 16



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 17



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 18



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 19



 

 

ORDINANCE BILL NO.  FOR 2019 

ORDINANCE NO.   

 

SWEET HOME ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO AUTHORIZING THE OPERATION OF CLASS IV ALL-

TERRAIN VEHICLES ON STREETS LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF SWEET HOME, OREGON, BUT 

SUBJECT TO THE PROVISION OF ORS 821.200(1), AND PROVIDING A PENALTY FOR THE 

VIOLATION THEREOF. 

 WHEREAS, the Sweet Home City Council desires to adopt an ordinance authorizing the 

operation of all-terrain vehicles on City streets as located within the city limits of the City of 

Sweet Home; and 

 WHEREAS, the Sweet Home City Council has determined that it is necessary to impose 

certain restrictions on the operation of all-terrain vehicles on such streets for the purpose of 

protecting the interest and safety of the general public;  

NOW THEREFORE, 

 The City of Sweet Home does ordain as follows: 

Section 1. – Purpose:  

The purpose of this Ordinance is to authorize the operation of All-terrain vehicles on City 

streets within the City of Sweet Home subject to the terms, provisions, rights and 

responsibilities as set forth in this Ordinance. 

Section 2. – Definitions:  

For the purpose of this Ordinance, the following definitions are hereby established: 

(a) All-Terrain Vehicle(s) (ATV(s)), means Class I All-Terrain Vehicles, Class II All-Terrain 

Vehicles, Class III All-Terrain Vehicles, and/or Class IV All -Terrain Vehicles 

(b) ATV Operator Permit, means the ATV Safety Education Card issued upon completion 

of an Oregon Parks and Recreation Departments approved ATV Safety Education 

course and passage of the minimum standards test of ATV Safety Education 

competency as established by the Oregon Parks and Recreation Department as set 

forth in OAR 736-004-0015(10). 

(c) Class I All-Terrain Vehicles, as defined by ORS 801.190. is a motorized, off-highway 

recreational vehicle that (a) is 50 inches or less in width, (b) has a dry weight of 

1,200 pounds or less, (c) travels on three or more pneumatic tires that are six inches 

or more in width and that are designed for use on wheels with a rim diameter of 14 

inches or less, (d) uses handlebars for steering, (e) has a seat designed to be 

straddled for the operator, and (f) is designed for or capable of cross-country travel 

on or immediately over land, water, sand, snow, ice, marsh, swampland, or other 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 20

https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/821.200
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action?selectedDivision=3408
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/801.190


 

 

natural terrain.  Class I All-Terrain Vehicles may also be known as quads, three-

wheelers, of four wheelers. 

(d) Class II All-Terrain Vehicles, as defined by ORS 801.193 is any motor vehicle that (a) 

weighs more than or is wider than a Class I All- Terrain Vehicle, (b) is designed for or 

capable of cross-country travel on or immediately over land, water, sand, snow, ice, 

marsh, swampland, or other natural terrain, (c) is not a Class IV All-Terrain Vehicle, 

and (d) is street-legal, is registered under ORS 803.420, and has a roof or roll bar.  

Class II All – Terrain Vehicles may also be known as four-by-fours, pickups, jeeps, 

sand rails, dune buggies, and SUV’s. 

(e) Class III All-Terrain Vehicle and Class IV All-Terrain Vehicle(s), as defined by ORS 

801.194. Class III All-Terrain Vehicle means a motorcycle that travels on two tires 

and that is actually being operated off highway. 

(f) Class IV is any motorized vehicle that (a) travels on four or more pneumatic tires that 

are six inches or more in width and that are designed for use on wheels with a rim 

diameter of 14 inches or less, (b) is designed for or capable of cross-country travel 

on or immediately over, land, water, snow, ice, marsh, swampland or other natural 

terrain, (c) Has nonstraddle seating (d) Has a steering wheel for steering control, (e) 

Has a dry weight of 1,800 pounds or less; and (f) Is 65 inches wide or less at its 

widest point, or current manufacturing standards of width and weight from the 

factory. Class IV All-Terrain Vehicles may also be known as side-by-sides.  

(g) Driver License, has the meaning given that term under ORS 801.245. 

(h) Motorcycle Helmet, has the meaning given that term under ORS 801.366. ORS 

801.366 defines a Motorcycle Helmet as a protective covering for the head 

consisting of a hard, outer shell, padding adjacent to and inside the outer shell and a 

chin-strap type retention system with a sticker indicating that the motorcycle helmet 

meets standards established by the United States Department of Transportation. 

(i) Traffic Law(s), means any and all Oregon statutes and regulations relating in any way 

to the operation or use of motorized vehicles, including, without limitation, the 

Oregon Vehicle Code (ORS Chapters 801 to 826) and any regulations or 

administrative rules promulgated thereunder. 

(j) Street(s) means all roads, streets, and alleys, other than Highway 20 and Highway 

228 as located within the boundaries of the City of Sweet Home that are open, used 

or intended for use of the general public for vehicles or vehicular traffic as a matter 

of right. 

(k) Hours of Operations, “daylight hours” means one hour before sunrise to one hour 

after sunset. 

Section 3. – Operation of All-Terrain Vehicles on Streets Authorized.  

Subject to the provisions of this Ordinance, Class IV ATV’s may be operated on Streets 

subject to the conditions and restriction set forth under ORS 821.200.  All-Terrain 

Vehicles are prohibited from operating under this Ordinance on Highway 20 and 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 21

https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/801.193
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/803.420
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/801.194
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/801.194
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/801.245
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/801.366
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/801.366
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/chapter/801
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/821.200


 

 

Highway 228 as located within the City, except that a person may, while operating a 

Class IV ATV, cross the above highways to the extent permitted under applicable Oregon 

law, including, without limitation, ORS 821.200(1). 

Section 4. Regulations for Operation of All-Terrain Vehicles.  

All-Terrain Vehicles operating under this Ordinance must be operated in compliance 

with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances, including, 

without limitation, all applicable Traffic Law requirements (including, without limitation, 

ORS 811.255) and all posted speed limits. 

Section 5. Licensed Driver 16 Years or Older Required.  

A person operating a Class IV ATV under this Ordinance must be 16 years of age or older 

and hold a valid Driver License. 

Section 6. – All Terrain Vehicle Operator Permit Required.  

A person operating a Class IV All-Terrain Vehicle under this Ordinance must hold a valid 

Class IV ATV Operator Permit issued under ORS 390.577. 

Section 7. – Safety Equipment Requirements.  

All-Terrain Vehicles operated under this Ordinance must be equipped with the safety 

equipment required under all applicable Traffic Laws, including, without limitation, ORS 

821.030, ORS 821.040, ORS 821.220, ORS 821.230, and OAR 735-116-000. 

Section 8. – Helmet Requirements.  

A person who is under 18 years of age must wear a Motorcycle Helmet with a fastened 

chin strap while riding as a passenger on an ATV operated under this Ordinance. 

Section 9. – Safety Belt Requirements.  

A person must be properly secured with a safety belt or safety harness while operating 

or riding as a passenger on an ATV operated under this Ordinance if such ATV as 

required to be equipped with safety belts or safety harnesses at the time the ATV was 

manufactured, or safety belts or safety harness have been installed on the ATV. 

Section 10. – Speed Limits.  

All-Terrain Vehicles operated under this Ordinance must be operated in compliance with 

all posted speed limits and may not be operated (a) at a rate of speed greater than 

reasonable and proper under the existing conditions, or (b) in a negligent manner so as 

to endanger or cause injury, death, and/or damage to the operator or person or 

property of another. 

 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 22

https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/821.200
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/811.255
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/390.577
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/820.030
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/821.040
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/821.220
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/821.230
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayChapterRules.action?selectedChapter=104


 

 

 

 

Section 11. – Prohibition on Operating All-Terrain While Driving Privileges Suspended.  

A person may not operate an ATV under this Ordinance while the person’s driving 

privileges (i.e., Driver License) are suspended or revoked. 

Section 12. – Financial Requirements.  

All-Terrain Vehicles operated under this Ordinance must meet the financial 

responsibility requirements under ORS 806. For purposes of this Section 12, “financial 

responsibility requirements” means the ability to respond in damages for liability, on 

account of accidents arising out of the ownership, operation, maintenance, and/or use 

of an ATV, in a manner provided under ORS 806. The exemption in 806.020 does not 

apply to this ordinance. 

Section 13. –Hours of Operation Rules.   

All-Terrain Vehicles may be operated during daylight hours with headlights and 

taillights. All-Terrain Vehicles may be operated during hours of darkness and when 

limited visibility conditions exist if it is equipped with lighting equipment required for a 

motor vehicle under ORS 816.320 (For example; high and low beam headlights, 

taillights, turn signals, and brake lights). 

Section 14. – Posting.  

The City of Sweet Home will post signs giving notice that the operation of ATVs is 

permitted upon Streets under the provisions of this Ordinance. The City of Sweet Home 

will post such signs at locations necessary to inform the public that ATVs are permitted 

upon Streets, which sign locations will be determined by the City of Sweet Home in its 

sole discretion. 

Section 15. – Liability.  

The operation of an ATV will be undertaken at the sole risk and responsibility of the 

owner and/or operator. The City of Sweet Home, by passing this Ordinance, assumes no 

responsibility of the operation of such ATVs and will be held harmless in any action 

arising from the operation of such ATVs on or off any public way within the City limits, 

including, without limitation, Streets. 

Section 16. – Penalties.  

Violations of any provisions of this chapter constitutes a violation and may be 

prosecuted under the provisions of Chapter 9.36. 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 23

https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/chapter/806
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/806.020
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/816.320


 

 

 

 

Section 17. – Reference Statutes and Rules.  

All reference to particular laws, statutes, or rules include that law, statute, or rule as 

now in effect or as may be amended from time to time. 

Section 18. – Invalidity.  

If any section, subsection or part of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid, 

unenforceable or unconstitutional, such holding will not affect the validity, 

enforceability or constitutionally of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

Section 19. – Snowmobiles.  

Nothing contained in this Ordinance applies to the operation of snowmobiles as that 

term is defined by ORS 801.490. 

Section 20. – Modifications.  

The Chief of Police of the City of Sweet Home has the authority to modify the provisions 

of this Ordinance as a result of the occurrence of special events. Such modifications shall 

be temporary in nature and shall not violate Traffic Laws. 

 

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL of the City of Sweet Home this ___ day of ____, 2019. 

 

       __________________________ 
      Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________________________ 

City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 24

https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/801.490


City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 25



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 26



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 27



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 28



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 29



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 30



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 31



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 32



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 33



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 34



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 35



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 36



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 37



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 38



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 39



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 40



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 41



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 42



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 43



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 44



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 45



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 46



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 47



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 48



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 49



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 50



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 51



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 52



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 53



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 54



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 55



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 56



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 57



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 58



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 59



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 60



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 61



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 62



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 63



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 64



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 65



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 66



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 67



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 68



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 69



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 70



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 71



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 72



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 73



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 74



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 75



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 76



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 77



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 78



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 79



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 80



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 81



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 82



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 83



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 84



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 85



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 86



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 87



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 88



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 89



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 90



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 91



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 92



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 93



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 94



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 95



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 96



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 97



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 98



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 99



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 100



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 101



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 102



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Ray Towry, City Manager 
  
FROM:  Trish Rice, PW Engineering 
  Greg Springman, PW Director 
DATE:   August 22, 2019 
SUBJECT:  Regional Municipal Biosolids Composting Feasibility Study 

 
  
City staff contracted with Murraysmith for the final design of the City’s WWTP Improvement 
Project. As a part of the design process, staff identified biosolids composting process as part of 
the WWTP Improvement Project.  City Council approved the 20% schematic design on April 23, 
2019, ultimately approving Murraysmith’s proposal allowing staff to move into final design of the 
WWTP on June 25, 2019. 
 
Biosolids are the solid byproduct of the City’s wastewater treatment process. The City currently 
pays to haul/landfill biosolids from the treatment process which is not a sustainable solution.  
Biosolids can be composted with wood chips into a product that meets EPA’s Exceptional 
Quality safety standards. Compost would be safe to handle and could be used on public land 
such as parks and schools.  The compost may also be distributed to citizens for private use 
such as lawns and gardens without limitations or liability.  This is a sustainable solution because 
there are no restrictions on disposal of Exceptional Quality materials, and it turns a waste 
product into a valuable resource. 
 
Initial discussions between City staff, Murraysmith, and our colleagues in other cities, we have 
discovered that there is interest in a regional biosolids composting facility. Staff representing 
Sweet Home, Lebanon, and Albany met on August 22, 2019 to discuss the possibilities of a 
regional biosolids composting program.  Consensus among the cities staff was to task 
Murraysmith to perform a feasibility study for a regional biosolids composting facility.  Albany 
and Lebanon will introduce this concept to their governing bodies in the coming days.  We plan 
to reach out to DEQ and Business Oregon as potential funding sources for all or part of the 
feasibility study. 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 103



1 

 

REQUEST FOR  
COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
August 27th, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
J. Lynn, Chief of Police 
REVIEWED BY: 
R. Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
Peer Court IGA 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Peer Court IGA, Peer Court- 
How it Works 

TYPE OF ACTION: 

      RESOLUTION 

 X   MOTION 

       OTHER 

 
RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
Council Goal #3 (2) 

 
TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
Improve community safety 

 
PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:   
Present the Sweet Home City Council with the opportunity to renew the Intergovernmental 
Agreement between Linn County and the City of Sweet Home associated with Peer Court and 
the attached Resolution for 2019. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
The Sweet Home Police Department has worked in cooperation with Linn County Juvenile 
Department to host a Peer Court in our community. Peer Court has been ongoing in Sweet 
Home since its inception in 2009. 
 
Peer Court is designed to allow for a peer on peer review of non-violent juvenile offenses such 
as MIP – Tobacco, MIP – Alcohol, Curfew and Harassment type calls.  
 
The attached chart represents the number and types of cases that have gone through Peer 
Court since 2010. 
 

 
 
 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50 Curfew

Runaway

Theft 3
(SL)
Theft 2
(SL)
MIP
Tobacco
MIP
Alcohol
MIP
Marijuana
REAP

CM3

CM2

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 104



2 

 

THE CHALLENGE:    
The challenges associated with Peer Court are minimal. The department does utilize staff time 
(Community Service Officer) to manage, organize and run Peer Court.  
 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

● City of Sweet Home Juveniles and Parents/Guardians. Peer Court provides a local 
option for minor juvenile offenses to be resolved through peer to peer review.  

● Sweet Home Police Department.  Time and resources that could potentially be spent 
elsewhere.  

● Linn County Juvenile Department. Peer Court provides another outlet and resource for 
the Juvenile Department to assist in appropriately addressing juvenile issues.  

 
 
 
ISSUES & FINACIAL IMPACTS: 

1. Police Department – The Sweet Home Police Department does budget $1000 
associated with Peer Court which, absent Peer Court, could be diverted to other areas. 

 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing.  The City Council can choose to take no action and allow the IGA to end 
without replacement.    

2. Approve the attached 2019 Resolution authorizing the City to enter into the 
Intergovernmental Agreement with Linn County.  This option would extend Peer Court 
through July of 2020.  

3. Move to end Peer Court. The City Council could choose to end the City’s involvement in 
Peer Court. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
I recommend option #2.  Peer Court is not an answer to juvenile problems or juvenile sanctions, 
but it does provide another form of review for the Linn County Juvenile Department to consider. 
I believe that the time and resources spent by the Police Department are outweighed by the 
opportunities that Peer Court presents to the Justice System as it attempts to deal with juvenile 
offenders.  

 
 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 105



 

 
 

 

 
HOW PEER COURT WORKS 

Below is a brief explanation of how Peer Court works. It includes the criteria used to determine if 
a juvenile offender is eligible for Peer Court, the typical process and the most common forms of 
sanctions. 

CRITERIA  

In order to be eligible for consideration in Peer Court, the following conditions must be met: 

Offender is under 18 years of age (or actively enrolled in SH School District) 
First or second time offender 
Admission of guilt regarding the offense 
Consent by both offender and Parent/Guardian 

The list below are the typical offenses heard by the court: 

Runaway 
Curfew Violation 
Minor in possession of Tobacco  
Minor in possession of Marijuana 
Minor in possession of Alcohol 
Littering 
Criminal Trespass 
Theft 3 
Criminal Mischief 
Reckless Burning 
Assault 4 
Disorderly Conduct 
Harassment 
Carrying a concealed weapon 

PROCESS 

When a juvenile offender is contacted by a police officer, they will be referred to the Linn 
County Juvenile Department (LCJD).  Then they will be scheduled for an interview with 
the offender and their parent or guardian to determine if the offender is eligible for the 
program and if they agree to complete the program. Sometimes LCJD does not do an 
intake interview – they just send Sweet Home Peer Court the referral and we do the 
intake interview. 

An appearance date is scheduled, and the offender appears, with a parent or guardian, 
to have the case heard. The presiding Judge is a local adult or student volunteer who 
will ensure that all legal requirements are met. Students will act as Case Presenters, to 
summarize the case and present any circumstances that may influence the sanctions. 

City of Sweet Home 
1950 Main Street 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 

541-367-5181 

Fax 541-367-5235 

www.sweethomeor.gov 

shpd@sweethomeor.gov 

 

Sweet Home Police Department 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 106



Finally, a jury composed of other student volunteers and former offenders will decide the 
appropriate sentence in the case.  

Sentencing will normally involve community service, restitution when appropriate, and 
will always include future service as a peer court juror. At any point during the process, 
an offender who fails to carry out sentencing is automatically turned over to the Juvenile 
courts for prosecution. Peer Court allows the offender a "second chance" in avoiding the 
system. Once the sentence is successfully completed, all record of the offense may be 
removed from the youth’s legal record.  

SANCTIONS  

The following are typical sanctions imposed by Peer Court:  

       Complete a Homework Pkt. (ALL offenders) 
       Community Service hours shall consist of 0-10 hours 
       Linn Co. Work Crew for anything over 8 hours 
       Maximum number of words given for essay: 500 
       Verbal or hand-written letter of apology  
       Restitution (if deemed necessary) 
       All defendants must sit as a juror at least once on a future case 
       Attend Life Choices Class 
       Attend Victims Impact panel 
       Attend Anger Management classes 
       Attend Drug/Alcohol evaluation and follow recommendations  
       Attend a Smoking Cessation Class 
 

 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 107



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 108



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 109



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 110



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 111



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 112



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 113



1 

 

 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 
 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
August 27, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Brandon Neish, Finance Director 
REVIEWED BY:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 
 
RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
ORS 294.471(3)(a) 

TITLE:   
Supplemental Budget for New 
Code Enforcement Vehicle  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Resolution No. 22 for 2019 
 
TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
Goal #2.5: Continue to implement 
financial “best” practices 
Goal #3.2: Look for methods to 
improve community safety, Police, 
Community Design, etc. 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
  X   RESOLUTION 
    _ MOTION 
    _ OTHER 
 
  X_ ROLL CALL 

VOTE 
 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA: 
To review a supplemental budget for the Project & Equipment Reserve Fund due to an 
unanticipated need for a replacement vehicle for Code Enforcement.   
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT: 
In 2015, the City purchased a 2008 Mercury Mariner with 123,950 miles for $9,000. Today, the 
vehicle has over 146,000 miles. The vehicle was used by the Building Inspector prior to the 
hiring of the current Code Enforcement Officer who now utilizes the vehicle. The City Mechanic 
has informed staff that the vehicle needs a replacement transmission which would cost the city 
approximately $4,500. Today, the vehicle is worth ~$3,000 in fair condition and nearly $4,000 in 
“excellent” condition. Replacing the transmission would require expenditures beyond the 
estimated worth of the vehicle. City staff has decided this is not a long-term, fiscally viable 
option and requests Council authorization to utilize equipment reserves to purchase a 
replacement vehicle. 
 
The Community & Economic Development Department, which oversees Code Enforcement, 
currently has $11,359 in available equipment reserves. Based on initial conversations with the 
Code Enforcement Officer and the Community & Economic Development Director, a pickup 
would be the most advantageous vehicle for this position. This would allow the Code 
Enforcement Officer to haul trash, misplaced shopping carts, and address other code violations 
without necessitating the need for additional staff support from Public Works. 
 
In 2018, Public Works purchased a supervisor pickup, a Chevrolet Silverado fleet vehicle, for 
approximately $26,000. Considering this, staff is requesting $30,000 in authorized budget to 
purchase a vehicle for Code Enforcement. The additional $19k in funds would be borrowed from 
other funds available in the Project & Equipment Reserve fund (fund 202) with a plan to replace 
the borrowed funds using CEDD budgets in future fiscal years. Additionally, staff would continue 
the fiscal practice of setting aside funds for the eventual replacement 12-15 years down the 
road. This would result in an additional funding need of ~$2,200 annually from the General Fund 
(an initial commitment of approximately $6,000 annually, for five-years, for loan repayment and 
“depreciation”). Once the initial loan has been repaid, necessary General Fund support would 
total $2,200. 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 114



2 

 

 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
Should the City continue to repair vehicles where repairs exceed the vehicle’s estimated value? 
 
STAKEHOLDERS: 

• City of Sweet Home Citizens –The role of the Code Enforcement Officer is vital to the 
livability in the community. 

• Code Enforcement Officer – The Code Enforcement Officer must have the appropriate 
tools to enforce the City’s Code of Ordinances. A vehicle is an essential part of the Code 
Enforcement Officer’s “tool belt” so they can travel around town to address complaints 
and enhance the livability of the community. 

• City of Sweet Home City Council – The Council adopts the final budget for a fiscal year 
and approves any supplemental budget requests when necessary expenditures exceed 
expenditure authority. 
  

ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
Due to the unanticipated nature of the request, funds were not budgeted for this purpose in the 
Project & Equipment Reserve fund. The estimated purchase and setup for this type of vehicle is 
+/- $30,000 to purchase the vehicle, obtain necessary licensing from DMV and mark the vehicle. 
 
The adopted budget for the Project & Equipment Reserve fund included $383,233 in 
expenditure authority. $230,000 was budgeted for Public Works to replace aging assets and the 
rest was budgeted for the Police Department’s equipment needs including new dispatch 
terminals and replacement vehicles. These departments plan on using the current, authorized 
funding thereby requiring additional expenditure authority so as to not limit their ability to replace 
assets as needed. 
  
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
A decision on the direction of the Code Enforcement program in Sweet Home which requires 
consideration of transportation methods. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing.  Council could choose to do nothing at this time. The City will either be 
forced to repair the current vehicle or attempt to shuffle City vehicles to provide an 
existing vehicle for enforcement needs. 

2. Approve Resolution No. 22 for 2019. This supplemental budget authorizes expenditure 
authority from the Project Reserve Fund for purchase of a new Code Enforcement 
vehicle. 

3. Request staff return with a different authorization amount. Council could determine that 
the $30,000 requested exceeds what Council is willing to authorize. Staff would return to 
a future Council meeting with a revised resolution. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends option 2, Move to approve Resolution No. 22 for 2019, A Resolution adopting 
a Supplemental Budget for the Project & Equipment Reserve Fund.  There is a critical need for 
a new Code Enforcement vehicle to replace the current vehicle that needs repairs in excess of 
the estimated value of the vehicle. This adjustment represents the best fiscal option. 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 115



RESOLUTION NO. 22 FOR 2019 

 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET FOR THE PROJECT & EQUIPMENT 

RESERVE FUND 

 

WHEREAS, the Sweet Home City Council adopted the 2019-2020 budget on May 28, 2019, and; 

WHEREAS, the Community and Economic Development Department has a vehicle for use by the Code 

Enforcement Officer and; 

WHEREAS, the current vehicle for Code Enforcement requires unanticipated repairs with an estimated 

repair cost that exceeds the current value of the vehicle, and; 

WHEREAS, staff requests additional expenditure authority in Fund 202, the Project & Equipment Reserve 

Fund, which includes resources set aside by various City departments, and; 

WHEREAS, Oregon Local Budget Law Chapter 294 Section 471 subsection 3(a) requires a supplemental 

budget resolution which adds ten (10) percent or less in expenditure authority. 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF SWEET HOME adopts a supplemental budget 

authorizing $30,000 to be used for the purchase of a replacement vehicle in the Community & Economic 

Development Department (CEDD) using available CEDD reserves and borrowing from available funds in 

the fund. 

Borrowed funds shall be repaid over five-years with zero interest applied to the principal amount. 

This resolution shall take effect upon its approval and passage. 

 

PASSED by the Council and approved by the Mayor this 27th day of August 2019. 

 

____________________________________________ 

Mayor 

 

 

____________________________________________ 

         City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 116



1 

 

 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 
 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
August 27, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Brandon Neish, Finance Director 
REVIEWED BY:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 
 
 
 
RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
ORS 294.471(3)(a) 
SH Financial Policy Section IX 

TITLE:   
INFORMATION ONLY: New City 
Hall Budget Update 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Budget Status Report 
Furniture Quote 
Sign Quotes 
 
TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
  __   RESOLUTION 
   _ _ MOTION 
  X__ OTHER 
 
 ____      Roll Call Vote 

   

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA: 
To review the prior costs for construction of City Hall, the available budget at 2019 fiscal year 
end and additional needs for the current fiscal year. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT: 
Prior to 2017, Council and staff discussed City Hall at 1140 12th Avenue and determined that an 
opportunity existed to improve the facility. Subsequently, during the 2017 fiscal year, the Council 
approved the purchase of the building at 3225 Main Street for $725,000. 
 
In January 2018, the Council entered into a contract with Scott|Edwards Architecture to design 
the new City Hall. Those designs were reviewed by the Council over multiple meetings during 
the summer of 2018 and a final design was later approved by the Council including flooring, 
paint schemes and wall materials. The next phase of the project was construction/renovation. 
 
The renovation of the new City Hall facility was expected to cost +/- $1.1 million plus 
architectural fees of $100,000 according to estimates provided by S|EA. The total actual cost for 
the renovation of 3225 Main Street totaled $1,209,282.28 and stretched over fiscal years 2018 
and 2019. At the end of fiscal year 2019, $38,833 remained in the Building Reserve fund plus 
an additional $14,703 in interest earnings totaling $53,536 in available fund balance. The City 
has additional needs for the building and will request use of this fund balance in the 2020 fiscal 
year through a supplemental budget to purchase a sign for the front of the site and furniture for 
the conference rooms and lobby. Additionally, some office furniture is necessary. 
 
The new City Hall facility has three conference rooms in addition to the Council Chambers. 
Previously, the City had one conference room and associated furniture. Furthermore, City Hall 
previously did not have a lobby space for waiting guests or for individuals filling out necessary 
paperwork. As a result, additional furniture is necessary to furnish these spaces for use. The 
City worked with King Office in Albany to provide furniture that would fit the theme of the facility 
and would withstand the day-to-day use of an office building. The attached quote outlines the 
furniture that staff has selected. 
 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 117



2 

 

Having moved into the new facility, additional office furniture for employees is needed to provide 
matching setups and for new employees that will be starting in the future. The Community & 
Economic Development Department wishes to purchase three new desks, one for the Permit 
Technician, the Associate Planner and another for a position approved in the 2019-2020 
budget, a new Engineering Technician. These desks will then allow current furniture that does 
not match to be phased out and other furniture to be shuffled to other staff in the department to 
provide uniformity. Additionally, the City Manager needs office furniture to replace the folding 
tables currently being used. 
 
Updated signage is also needed to identify the building to the public and those passing through 
town. The City requested quotes from three vendors for signage that would fit the stone 
pedestal left by the Forest Service. Staff reviewed the quotes from the vendors and selected 
ES&A Sign & Awning Company who provided three quotes for different sign styles. All three 
include a static “Sweet Home City Hall” sign. From there, the first option includes a digital, red 
lettered reader board display which would allow the City to publicize meetings and events in 
Sweet Home. The second and third options include a multi-line, full color LCD display for image 
display. Staff believes that the third option, the 19mm full color LCD display would best meet the 
needs of the community and provide the City with an opportunity to advertise on a major Oregon 
arterial highway (Highway 20). 
 
Staff will attempt to utilize existing operations budgets to complete these purchases. However, if 
staff is unable to use these existing funds, authorization to spend from the remaining building 
funds would ensure that departments can continue their operations as initially budgeted without 
impacting services. 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
Should the City utilize leftover building funds to purchase needed furniture and signage for the 
new City Hall? 
 
STAKEHOLDERS: 

• City of Sweet Home citizens – Citizens who use City Hall need to have space to fill out 
paperwork or a place to sit while waiting for a meeting. The items proposed ensure that 
citizens visiting City Hall feel welcome and comfortable in a building that belongs to the 
constituents of Sweet Home. Additionally, the conference room space is available to 
citizens for reservation and conference room furniture makes using those spaces easier 
and more convenient. 

• City of Sweet Home staff – City Hall houses many city employees who need the items 
considered to effectively communicate and complete their jobs. 

• City of Sweet Home City Council – The Council must authorize any supplemental budget 
that increases expenditure authority after a budget has been adopted. Effective 
communication methods and office furniture also benefits the Council who will rely on 
these items for notification and hosting of committee and Council meetings. 
  

ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
The City estimates it will need $45,000 to purchase the needed furniture and signage for City 
Hall. As adopted, the budget does not have much of in the way of operational funds to 
accommodate these items unless budgeted services come in under anticipated levels. As a 
precaution, staff is requesting that the available balance of $53,500 be authorized for spending 
in the Building fund to mitigate impacts on operational needs. This would eliminate the fund 
balance in the Building fund. 
  
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
A decision from the City Council on the importance of uniformity in City Hall and communication 
methods moving forward. 
 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 118



3 

 

OPTIONS: 
*NOTE* Council at the August 27th meeting is only reviewing the proposal for budget 
authorization and will be asked to provide direction during the September 10, 2019 normal 
Council meeting after a public hearing is held in accordance with ORS 294.471. 
 

1. Do Nothing.  Council could choose to do nothing at this time. Staff will evaluate further 
whether these items can be purchased using operating funds or if they’ll need to be 
deferred to another budget year. 

2. Approve Resolution No. 23 for 2019. This supplemental budget authorizes expenditure 
authority from the Building Reserve fund for purchase of a sign and furniture for City 
Hall. 

3. Request staff return with a different authorization amount. Council could determine that 
the $53,500 requested from the Building Reserve fund exceeds what Council is willing to 
authorize. Staff would return to a future Council meeting with a revised resolution and a 
second Public Hearing as required by ORS. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff will recommend option 2, Adopt Resolution No. 23 for 2019, A Resolution Adopting A 
Supplemental Budget for the Building Reserve Fund at the September 10th City Council 
meeting. 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 119



RESOLUTION NO. 23 FOR 2019 

 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET FOR THE BUILDING RESERVE FUND 

 

WHEREAS, the Sweet Home City Council adopted the 2019-2020 budget on May 28, 2019, and; 

WHEREAS, the City recently completed a renovation of the building at 3225 Main Street, and; 

WHEREAS, additional items are needed related to the construction of the aforementioned facility, and; 

WHEREAS, staff requests additional expenditure authority in Fund 310, the Building Reserve Fund, and; 

WHEREAS, Oregon Local Budget Law requires a public hearing for any supplemental budget which adds 

ten (10) percent or more in expenditure authority, and; 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 10, 2019 to hear testimony over the proposed 

supplemental budget, and; 

WHEREAS, the Council has heard public testimony on the topic of the supplemental budget. 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF SWEET HOME adopts a supplemental budget 

authorizing $53,500 to be used for the purchase of a sign designating 3225 Main Street as Sweet Home’s 

City Hall and furniture necessary for the operation of the facility. 

This resolution shall take effect upon its approval and passage. 

 

PASSED by the Council and approved by the Mayor this 10th day of September 2019 

 

____________________________________________ 

Mayor 

 

____________________________________________ 

         City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 120



General Ledger
REVENUES VS.
EXPENSES

User: bneish
Printed: 8/22/2019 11:45:46 AM
Period 01 - 13
Fiscal Year 2019

Account Number Description Period
Amt

End Bal Budget Variance %
ExpendCollect

310 BUILDING RESERVE FUND
310-000-300-000 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 0.00 -343,757.84 -364,290.00 -20,532.16 94.36
310-000-361-000 INTEREST 0.00 -14,807.86 0.00 14,807.86 0.00
310-000-390-001 MISC. REVENUES 0.00 -1,400.00 0.00 1,400.00 0.00

Revenues 0.00 -359,965.70 -364,290.00 -4,324.30 98.81

002 Non-Departmental
310-002-480-320 Professional Services 0.00 30,365.28 75,000.00 44,634.72 40.49
310-002-480-431 Building Repair & Maintenance 0.00 945.21 0.00 -945.21 0.00
310-002-480-610 Office Supplies 0.00 399.00 0.00 -399.00 0.00
310-002-480-612 Operating Supplies 0.00 1,644.55 0.00 -1,644.55 0.00
310-002-480-614 Tools & Small Equipment 0.00 84.99 0.00 -84.99 0.00
310-002-480-619 Computers 0.00 11,160.00 0.00 -11,160.00 0.00

Material & Services 0.00 44,599.03 75,000.00 30,400.97 59.47

310-002-480-731 Construction 0.00 1,131,726.26 1,119,290.00 -12,436.26 101.11
310-002-480-741 Machinery 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 -10,000.00 0.00

Capital Outlay 0.00 1,141,726.26 1,119,290.00 -22,436.26 102.00

Revenue Total 0.00 -359,965.70 -364,290.00 -4,324.30 -0.9881
Expense Total 0.00 1,186,325.29 1,194,290.00 7,964.71 0.9933
002 Non-Departmental 0.00 1,186,325.29 1,194,290.00 7,964.71 99.33

GL - REVENUES VS. EXPENSES (08/22/2019 - 11:45 AM) Page 1

010
310-010-391-040 0.00 -880,000.00 -830,000.00 50,000.00 106.02

0.00 -880,000.00 -830,000.00 50,000.00 106.02

Transfers
Transfer In for Capital 
Transfer

310 BUILDING RESERVE FUND 0.00 -53,640.41 0.00 53,640.41 0.00

Revenue Total 0.00
Expense Total 0.00

-359,965.70
306,325.29

-364,290.00
364,290.00

-4,324.30
57,964.71

-0.9881
0.8409

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 121



PROPOSAL
Proposal #: 29368
  
Proposal Date: 07/30/19
Customer #: CRM009802
Page: 1 of 5

  Salesperson:           Jason Spear

COMPANY INITIALS _______                                                                            ES&A Sign and Awning CUSTOMER INITIALS _______
                                                                                                                               89975 Prairie Rd  Eugene, OR  97402
                                                                                                                               P 541-485-5546; F 541-485-5813

      SOLD TO:        JOB LOCATION:

CITY OF SWEET HOME
3225 MAIN STREET
SWEET HOME OR 97386
 
 

CITY OF SWEET HOME
3225 MAIN STREET
SWEET HOME OR 97386
 
 

ES&A SIGN CORP. (HEREINAFTER CALLED THE "COMPANY") HEREBY PROPOSES TO FURNISH ALL THE MATERIALS AND PERFORM ALL THE 
LABOR NECESSARY FOR THE COMPLETION OF:

QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE
 1         QUOTE #29368 $625.00 $625.00

Mobilization

1         QUOTE #29368A $16,117.00 $16,117.00
Fabricate and install (1) one approx 2' x 6' D/F internally illuminated
monument sign with 19mm monochrome LED message center as per specifications on
ES&A design #29368A.
- Install to existing rock base and poles.
- Cut poles to height if necessary.
- Power to sign by customer.
- 4G wireless modem communication.

1         QUOTE #29368A1 $18,616.00 $18,616.00
Fabricate and install (1) one approx 2' x 6' D/F internally illuminated
monument sign with 19mm RGB Color LED message center as per specifications on
ES&A design #29368A1.
- Install to existing rock base and poles.
- Cut poles to height if necessary.
- Power to sign by customer.
- 4G wireless modem communication.

1         QUOTE #29368A2 $20,276.00 $20,276.00
Fabricate and install (1) one approx 2' x 6' D/F internally illuminated
monument sign with 16mm RGB Color LED message center as per specifications on
ES&A design #29368A2.
- Install to existing rock base and poles.
- Cut poles to height if necessary.
- Power to sign by customer.
- 4G wireless modem communication.

ALL MATERIAL IS GUARANTEED TO BE AS SPECIFIED, AND THE ABOVE TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DRAWINGS AND OR 
SPECIFICATIONS SUBMITTED FOR THE ABOVE WORK AND COMPLETED IN A WORKMANLIKE MANNER FOR THE SUM OF:

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 122



PROPOSAL
Proposal #: 29368
  
Proposal Date: 07/30/19
Customer #: CRM009802
Page: 2 of 5

  Salesperson:           Jason Spear

COMPANY INITIALS _______                                                                            ES&A Sign and Awning CUSTOMER INITIALS _______
                                                                                                                               89975 Prairie Rd  Eugene, OR  97402
                                                                                                                               P 541-485-5546; F 541-485-5813

                                                     TOTAL PROPOSAL AMOUNT:        N/A

 TERMS: 50.0% DOWN, BALANCE DUE ON COMPLETION
      
     
 THIS PRICE DOES NOT INCLUDE ELECTRICAL HOOKUP, PERMITS, ENGINEERING OR TAX UNLESS SPECIFICALLY STATED.

NOTE:  THIS PROPOSAL MAY BE WITHDRAWN IF NOT ACCEPTED WITHIN 30 DAYS.  WORK WILL NOT BEGIN UNTIL DOWN PAYMENT AND 
WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE IS RECEIVED.
 
ANY ALTERATION FROM THE ABOVE SPECIFICATIONS INVOLVING EXTRA COSTS, WILL BE EXECUTED ONLY UPON WRITTEN ORDERS, AND 
WILL BECOME AN EXTRA CHARGE OVER AND ABOVE THE ESTIMATE TO BE PAID BY THE PURCHASER.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Payment terms:  50% down with order.  Balance due upon delivery or installation.  Work will not begin until down payment and written acceptance have been received.
Permits are additional and are charged at cost with a $350 procurement fee.  Engineering, private locates, and special inspections are additional at cost plus 10%.
Primary Electrical to display(s) and hook-up is not included.  All signs will be manufactured for 120 Volts unless otherwise requested in writing.  Dedicated circuit(s) must be 
provided with a continuous ground to panel.  Voltage at sign must be within 117v  to 123v or warranty will be void.
Sales tax is additional.
Face changes and modifications to existing signs: Unless specified in writing, repairs to ballasts, power supplies, LED’s, transformers, neon, fluorescent lamps, lamp sockets, 
and all other lighting components are not included in price.
Not responsible for underground obstructions and damage to same.  
Expiration:  Due to fluctuations in fuel, energy, labor, and material costs, sale agreements may be withdrawn if not accepted within (60) sixty days.

1. Agreement.  Seller agrees to sell, and Buyer agrees to purchase, an advertising display, sign, or awning (Display) in conformity with the terms of this agreement.
2. Buyer’s Duties.  Unless this agreement provides otherwise, Buyer shall, at Buyer’s expense:

2.1 Provide unobstructed access for personnel, vehicles and equipment directly adjacent to display location including attic, roof, and fascia.
2.2 Prior to installation, supply unobstructed, dedicated electrical circuits within 5’-0” to the Display of an appropriate capacity in conformance with Federal, 

State, and local laws.
2.3 Perform all necessary blocking, modifications and/or reinforcements to the building on which Display is to be installed.
2.4 Identify location of, relocate or arrange for relocation, of all public and private underground utilities or overhead power lines as necessary to accommodate 

installation of Display, and/or to comply with laws and regulations of federal, state, or local municipal authorities.
2.5 Acquire all necessary engineering, permits, performance bonds, and zoning variances.
2.6 Provide necessary traffic control, barricades, parking, sidewalk, or other special use permits.
2.7 Remove and store or dispose of any pre-existing display or architectural feature.
2.8 Repair or restore exterior wall surfaces.
2.9 Repair or replace landscaping damaged in the course of normal Display installation.
2.10 Acquire all necessary permission to install the Display from the property owner where Display is to be installed.
2.11 Maintain responsibility in the event that seller performs any of the Buyer’s duties listed above.

3. Seller’s Duties.  The construction and installation of the Display shall be subject to delay caused by strikes, fires, acts of God, regulations or restriction of 
government or public authority, or other accident forces, conditions or circumstances beyond the control of Seller.  Such circumstances shall suspend Seller’s 
obligation to perform its duties under this agreement.  Subject to those conditions, Seller shall, at Seller’s expense:
3.1 Design the Display in conformance with design specifications provided to Buyer.  Seller reserves the right to modify any or all construction, fabrication or 

installation, provided it does not, per industry standards, significantly affect the quality, aesthetics, or structural integrity of the product, or increase the price 
to Buyer.

3.2 Deliver the Display to a common carrier, if this agreement so provides.
3.3 Install the Display, if this agreement so provides, in conformity with installation specifications provided to Buyer.

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 123



PROPOSAL
Proposal #: 29368
  
Proposal Date: 07/30/19
Customer #: CRM009802
Page: 3 of 5

  Salesperson:           Jason Spear

COMPANY INITIALS _______                                                                            ES&A Sign and Awning CUSTOMER INITIALS _______
                                                                                                                               89975 Prairie Rd  Eugene, OR  97402
                                                                                                                               P 541-485-5546; F 541-485-5813

3.4 Investigate in good faith any claims by Buyer under the Limited Warranty provided by this agreement.

4. Purchase Price.  The purchase price listed in this agreement is subject to the following terms:
4.1 Late Charge.  Account balances more than 30 days past due shall be assessed an additional charge of 1.50 percent of the outstanding balance per month.
4.2 Additional Charges.  The purchase price listed in this agreement is negotiated based upon an assumption of the absence of unusual and/or unanticipated 

conditions.  Buyer agrees to pay additional charges at Seller’s prevailing rates for unanticipated work occasioned by any of the following:
4.2.1         Davis-Bacon Act, prevailing wage, overtime, and/or after-hours installations.
4.2.2         Buyer’s provision of inaccurate information affecting Display design or installation.
4.2.3         Separation of a multiple sign order into individual orders no longer being manufactured concurrently.
4.2.4         Additional trips to/from jobsite beyond original allocation resulting from Buyer’s request and/or non-performance, or any third party’s      

request and/or non-performance.
4.2.5         Buyer’s request for a change in Display design requiring: (a) nonstandard materials, production methods, colors, or finishes; or (b) 

alteration of completed design.
4.2.6         Alteration of Display design to accommodate engineering, permits, soil conditions, architectural elements, or building conditions.
4.2.7         Repairs to pre-existing illumination including but not limited to ballasts, fluorescent lamps, lamp holders, neon transformers, neon tubing, 

electrical insulators, and wiring.
4.2.8         Unusual composition of soil or concealment in soil of obstructions.
4.2.9         Unanticipated obstructions within building structure.
4.2.10 Material restriction of access to the Display site.
4.2.11 Storage of items completed by Seller but delayed at Buyer’s request, by Buyer’s non-performance, or by any third party’s non-

performance.
4.2.12 Failure of Buyer to fulfill any of its duties under this agreement.

4.3 Independent Covenant.  Buyer agrees that its duty to pay the purchase price is independent of Seller’s duties under this agreement.

5. Payment Terms.
5.1 Upon seller’s receipt of original signed purchase agreement, Buyer shall pay Seller a 50% down payment.
5.2 Balance due upon delivery or installation.
5.3 Additional charges will be invoiced separately and shall be due upon receipt.

      
          6.       Time is of the Essence.                 

6.1   Seller may withdraw purchase agreement if not accepted by Buyer within (60) sixty days of original bid date or if manufacturing has not commenced within
        (270) two hundred seventy days of original bid date.  Seller, at its discretion, may update the purchase price in lieu of withdrawal.
6.2   Work shall not commence until Seller has received original signed purchase agreement, down payment, and approved design from Buyer.
6.3   Work shall be subject to delay until Seller receives all of the following applicable items from Buyer:

6.3.1         Landlord approval
6.3.2         Structural engineering calculations

                  6.3.3         Permits
6.3.4         Paint colors

     6.3.5         Graphic colors
6.3.6         Ready–to-use vectorized electronic artwork

           7.       Warranty.
7.1 Limited Warranty; Disclaimer. Contingent on timely payment of the purchase price and subject to the exceptions and modifications listed in paragraphs 7.2 

and 7.3, Seller shall, at its expense, make all repairs, replacements, or corrections of Display, at Seller’s option, made necessary by reason of faulty 
workmanship or material and that appear within one year of Display’s delivery.  To exercise its rights under this limited warranty, Buyer must provide written 
notice of the defect to Seller within 30 days of discovery of the defect.  Repair or replacement shall constitute Buyer’s sole remedy, and in no event shall 
Seller be liable for incidental or consequential damages of any kind, including but not limited to personal injury, property loss, or lost profits.  There are no 
warranties other than those stated in this agreement.  SELLER EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS THE IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY AND 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

7.2  Lamps, Ballasts and Transformers.  Seller’s warranty as to labor involved in installing lamps, ballasts, and transformers, is limited to 1 year from 
installation.  In all other respects, Seller’s warranty is identical to the limited warranty listed in paragraph 7.1.

7.3 Exclusions.  Seller’s warranty excludes damages caused by normal wear and tear, unusual weather, acts of vandalism, neglect, or other abuse.

8.     Shipping.
8.1 Risk of Loss.  Unless otherwise agreed, delivery is FOB Seller’s place of business.  If damage occurs en route, Buyer agrees that it will pursue redress only 

through the carrier or carriers charged with delivery.
8.2 Costs.  Unless otherwise agreed, Buyer will pay any shipping charges directly to the carrier charged with delivery.
8.3 Timing of Delivery.  Although Seller will make a good-faith effort to adhere to delivery schedules, Seller will not be responsible for delays caused by any 

circumstances beyond its control.

9. Buyer’s Default.  In the event of a default by Buyer in the payment of any of the amounts due under this agreement:

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 124



PROPOSAL
Proposal #: 29368
  
Proposal Date: 07/30/19
Customer #: CRM009802
Page: 4 of 5

  Salesperson:           Jason Spear

COMPANY INITIALS _______                                                                            ES&A Sign and Awning CUSTOMER INITIALS _______
                                                                                                                               89975 Prairie Rd  Eugene, OR  97402
                                                                                                                               P 541-485-5546; F 541-485-5813

9.1 Acceleration.  The entire unpaid balance of the purchase price shall immediately be and become due and payable.
9.2 Collection of Amounts Owed.  Buyer agrees to pay interest at the rate of 18 percent per annum on any amounts due plus reasonable attorney’s fees.  Seller 

may recover those amounts by any or all of the following means:
9.2.1 Removal and Resale.  By entering upon the premises where the Display has been installed and removing and reselling the Display with or without 

notice and without liability on notice to Buyer.
9.2.2 Action for Collection.  By bringing suit for the balance due under this contact.
9.2.3 Other Action.  By exercising any other right allowed by law.

10. Intellectual Property.  All designs, specifications, and artwork created by Seller shall remain property of Seller.

11. Force Majeure.  Seller shall not be liable for any failure or delay in performance under this agreement to the extent that the failures or delays are proximately 
caused by forces beyond Seller’s reasonable control and occurring without its fault, including, without limitation, natural disasters, war, imposition of government 
restrictions, and failure of suppliers, subcontractors, and carriers.

12.  Authority.  The individuals executing this agreement represent and warrant that they are authorized to do so, and that the execution of this agreement is the lawful 
and voluntary act of each of the parties.

13. Restriction on Assignment.  This agreement shall not be assigned by Buyer without the written consent of Seller.  Consent by Seller to one (1) assignment shall 
not constitute consent to other assignments, nor shall it be construed to be a waiver of this paragraph.

14. Notice.  All notices required by this agreement shall be in writing addressed to the party to whom the notice is directed at the address of that party set forth below 
the signatures on this agreement and shall be deemed to have been given for all purposes upon receipt when personally delivered; one day after being sent, when 
sent by recognized overnight courier service; two days after deposit in United States mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified mail; or on the date transmitted by 
telegraph or facsimile.  Any party may designate a different mailing address or a different person for all future notices by notice given in accordance with this 
paragraph. 

15.  Attorney Fees.  In any proceeding to enforce or interpret this agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the losing party reasonable attorney 
fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the prevailing party before and at any trial, arbitration, bankruptcy, or other proceeding, and in any appeal or review.

16.  Modification.  No modification of this agreement shall be valid unless it is in writing and is signed by all of the parties.

17. Integration.  This agreement is the entire agreement of the parties.  There are no promises, terms conditions, or obligations other than those contained in this 
agreement.  This agreement shall supersede all prior communications, representations, and agreements, oral or written, of the parties.

18. Interpretation.  The paragraph headings are the convenience of the reader only and are not intended to act as a limitation on the scope or meaning of the 
paragraphs themselves.  This agreement shall not be construed against the drafting party.

19. Severability.  The invalidity of any term or provision of this agreement shall not affect the validity of any other provision.

20. Waiver.  Waiver by any party of strict performance of any provision of this agreement shall not be a waiver of or prejudice any party’s right to require strict 
performance of the same provision in the future or of any other provision.

21. Binding Effect.  Subject to restrictions in this agreement upon assignment, if any, this agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the heirs, legal 
representatives, successors, and assigns of the parties.

22. Venue and Personal Jurisdiction.  Should any action be filed to enforce this agreement, it is agreed that venue of such action shall lie in any court in Lane 
County, Oregon, having jurisdiction of the subject matter, and that the parties are subject to personal jurisdiction in Lane County, Oregon.  Each party waives all 
right to challenge venue or personal jurisdiction in any action filed in Lane County, Oregon.

THIS PROPOSAL DOES NOT BECOME EFFECTIVE UNTIL SIGNED AND DATED BY THE COMPANY; ONCE SIGNED THIS PROPOSAL WILL EXPIRE 
AFTER 60 DAYS.
     
THE ABOVE PRICES, SPECIFICATIONS, AND CONDITIONS ARE SATISFACTORY AND ARE HEREBY ACCEPTED. YOU ARE AUTHORIZED TO DO 
THE WORK AS SPECIFIED. PAYMENT WILL BE MADE AS OUTLINED ABOVE.
     
     

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 125



PROPOSAL
Proposal #: 29368
  
Proposal Date: 07/30/19
Customer #: CRM009802
Page: 5 of 5

  Salesperson:           Jason Spear

COMPANY INITIALS _______                                                                            ES&A Sign and Awning CUSTOMER INITIALS _______
                                                                                                                               89975 Prairie Rd  Eugene, OR  97402
                                                                                                                               P 541-485-5546; F 541-485-5813

SALESPERSON:  ________________________________ DATE: ___________________
     
ACCEPTED BY: _________________________________ TITLE: ___________________
     
SIGNATURE: ___________________________________ DATE: ___________________

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 126



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 127



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 128



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 129



1 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
PREFERRED AGENDA: 
August 27, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Ray Towry, City Manager 
REVIEWED BY:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 
 
 
RELEVANT CODE/POLICY: 
SH Financial Policy 

TITLE:   
2019 Community Development 
Block Grant 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Resolution No. 24 for 2019 
 
 
TOWARD COUNCIL GOAL: 
Goal #3.2: Look for methods to 
improve community safety, Police, 
Community Design, etc. 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
  X   RESOLUTION 
    _ MOTION 
    _ OTHER 
NO       Roll Call Vote 

   

PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:   
Seeking passage of a Resolution to meet CDBG requirements to submit an application for the 
2019 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and contract with Willamette Neighborhood 
Housing Services as the sub-grantee for housing rehabilitation grants. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
The City of Sweet Home has participated in the Linn County Housing Rehibilitation Program 
(LCHRP) since 2003.  The LCHRP collectively administers a housing rehabilitation program 
serving the communities of Brownsville, Halsey, Harrisburg, Lebanon, Scio, Sweet Home and 
Tangent, as well as the unincorporated areas of Linn County.  Council approved our sumitting 
on May 28, 2019.  The application process requires an updated resolution. 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:    
Should the City of Sweet Home be the grant sponsor and participate in the Linn County Housing 
Rehibilitation Program in partnership with Willamette Neighborhood Housing Services? 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   
City of Sweet Home Residents. There is a constant need for housing rehabilitation funds and 
services within the partnership’s jurisdiction, including Sweet Home.  
Linn County Residents. There is a constant need for housing rehabilitation funds and services 
within the partnership’s jurisdiction, including Linn County.  

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
Internal Capacity –  

There will be a miniminal amount of City staff time as administration requirements will be 
performed by Willamette Neighborhood Housing Services through a sub recipient grant 
agreement. 

Securing CDBG funding for the program will provide additional financial assistance to 
income qualifying households to make safety and habitability improvements to homes such as 
basic plumbing, electrical, roofing, weatherization and structural repairs. 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
Council approval of a Resolution allowing City staff to submit an application and contract with 
Willamette Neighborhood Housing Services as sub-grantee. 

 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing.   

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 130



2 

 

2. Approve Resolution No. 24 for 2019 – Authorizing Staff to submit an application for the 
2019 CDBG and authorizing the City Manager to sign the required documents and 
contract with Willamette Neighborhood Housing Services as sub-grantee. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Option #2  

1. Motion to Approve Resolution No. 24 for 2019 authorizing Staff to submit an 
application for the 2019 CDBG and authorizing the City Manager to sign the required 
documents and contract with Willamette Neighborhood Housing Services as sub-
grantee. 

 
 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 131



 
 RESOLUTION NO. 24 FOR 2019  

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING STAFF TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION FOR THE 2019 COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRAND AND AUTHORIZES THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 

CONTRACT WITH WILLAMETTE NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSING SERVICES AS SUB-GRANTEE.  

WHEREAS, The City is a member of the Linn County Housing Rehabilitation Partnership Program in rural 

Linn County which includes the incorporated cities of Brownsville, Halsey, Harrisburg, Lebanon, Scio, 

Sodaville, Sweet Home, Tangent, Waterloo, and all unincorporated areas of Linn County; and  

WHEREAS, The City is eligible to apply for a 2019 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) from 
the Oregon Business Development Department.  Community Development Block Grant funds come 
from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  The grants can be used for public 
facilities and housing improvements, primarily for persons with low and moderate incomes; and 
 
WHEREAS, The $500,000 grant will provide loan funds to approximately 10 households, grant funds to 
10-15 households in manufactured home parks and some administration and management fees to 
operate the program.  Willamette Neighborhood Housing Services (WNHS) has operated this program 
since January 2007. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
Section 1.  The Council of the City of Sweet Home herein authorizes the staff to submit an application 
for the 2019 CDBG and authorizes the City Manager to sign the required documents and contract with 
Willamette Neighborhood Housing Services as sub-grantee. 
 
Section 2. The Council of the City of Sweet Home will accept any CDBG award resulting from this 
application.  
 

Section 3.  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage.  

PASSED by the Council and executed by the Mayor this 27 day of August 2019 by a vote of ____ yeas 
and ____ nays.  

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

        Mayor Greg Mahler 

        City of Sweet Home, Oregon 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 132



 
 
 

LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 

July 9th, clarification was requested on HB 3137. (Taken from LOC’s Leg Bill Summary)  
Taxes Due After Stay. HB 3137 clarifies the due date of lodging taxes.  With this bill, taxes 

will be due AFTER a stay and not when the stay is booked. Reservations often change, and the 
industry generally uses the accrual accounting method. The LOC requested this bill. 

 
HB 2444: Directs Department of Education (ODE) to coordinate with Oregon FFA Association to 
increase student achievement and improve college preparation and career placement for 
students enrolled in agricultural education courses. (Effective date: July 1,2019) 
 
Requires 9-12th grade students in agricultural education programs also be enrolled in national 
FFA organization. Requires coordination between ODE and FFA with financial support for 
leadership and development, host competitive events and conventions for student award 
programs, and work with the Oregon State Fair to plan FFA participation. Appropriates General 
Fund dollars to ODE for this. Establishes grant program for summer agricultural programs.  

 
 

HB 2949: Manufactured Structure Exemption Cap Raised (Effective Date: September 29, 2019) 
 
Those who live in manufactured and mobile homes pay personal property taxes based on the 
assessed value of the home; however, if the assessed value is below a threshold ($17,000 this 
year as there is a CPI calculation), the home is exempt. (Value is different in largest counties.) 
These allowances are intended to keep manufactured housing affordable as housing values rise.    
 
 
HB 2001: Missing Middle Housing (Effective Date: On Passage)  
 
This bill will significantly impact how cities plan and zone for housing.  There are two different 
ways in which the bill impacts city work on housing: requiring more types of units to be allowed 
by-right in single family residential zones and changing how housing need and how capacity is 
calculated.  It includes technical assistance funds and requires Oregon Department of Land 
Conservation and Development (DLCD) to create model codes to assist cities with this work.   
The key components of the legislation are:  

Zoning  
• By June 30, 2021, requires all cities outside Metro with a population exceeding 10,000 
and less than 25,000 to allow a duplex on any lot or parcel zoned for residential use that 
allows for development of a single-family dwelling.  

 

City of Sweet Home 
1140 12th Avenue 

Sweet Home, OR 97396 
541-367-5128 

Fax 541-367-5113 
www.sweethomeor.gov 

 
 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 133



2 
 

• Extensions can be made for areas that do not have sufficient water, sewer, storm 
drainage, or transportation services (subject to approval by DLCD).  

 
Capacity Calculations  
• Changes the data that is used for capacity calculations.  
• Requires caps on expected capacity for newly rezoned single-family zones.  
• Amends factors to be considered for estimates of housing needs.  

 
Other sections of the bill create a new process for approving an alternative process for 
conversion of single-family residences to triplexes or quadplexes; prevent regulations of 
accessory dwelling units that require off-street parking or owner-occupancy; and limits deed 
restrictions on new developments that would prevent middle housing construction. 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 134



 

 
To:  City Council 
  Ray Towry, City Manager 
 
From:  Brandon Neish, Finance Director 
 
Subject: Finance Department Monthly Report – July 2019 
 
 
The Finance Department is responsible for the for the fiscal management of the City of Sweet 
Home. This includes accounts payable, payroll, general accounting, preparing the annual 
budget and the city’s annual audit. This department also administers the city’s assessment 
docket, coordinates employee’s benefits and maintains financial records relating to grants and 
contracts. The following information represents the department’s activities during the month of 
July 2019. 
 
Accounts Payable: 
The Finance Department maintains a weekly schedule for AP disbursements when possible. 
City departments submit documentation through Springbrook to request payment to vendors. 
Once the Finance Department has a completed purchase order and invoice/receipt, a check is 
printed and mailed within seven (7) business days. 
 
For the month of July 2019, 187 checks were printed totaling $567,573.06. A list of the checks 
is provided for your review. Below is a list of the checks that were equal to or exceeded $5,000 
and their purpose (if not clear on list). 
 
 

Check No. Vendor Description Amount 

89326 
Correct Equipment, 
Inc. 

New ultrasonic water 
meters and 
software/hardware 

$18,252.75 

89427 
Dept. of Consumer 
and Business 

Oregon Buildings 
Dept. fees 

$10,017.88 

89457 
RJM Equipment 
Sales, Inc. 

Locating equipment 
for leaking water 
lines 

$16,872.00 

89470 
Valley Contractors 
Supply 

New light fixtures at 
Water Treatment 
Plant 

$9,010.00 

 
Passports: 
Since 2001, the city has been accepting passport applications for the United States 
Department of State. Travelers can call, stop by city hall or visit the city’s website for 
information on application requirements. 
 
For the month of July 2019, the city processed 18 passports and took 6 passport pictures. 

City of Sweet Home 
1140 12th Avenue 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 

541-367-5128 

Fax 541-367-5113 

www.sweethomeor.gov 

 

Finance Department 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 135



 

Lien Searches: 
 
The city has various liens that can be applied to properties in Sweet Home. The city can apply 
a lien for past due utility balances or a property owner can place a lien on their property for 
improvement assessments per ORS. An internet database maintains a list of these liens and is 
searchable by title companies for paying off outstanding balances during a sale. Each lien 
search generates $25.00 for the city. 
 
For the month of July 2019, 49 lien searches were completed. 
  
Utility Billing: 
Utility billing is responsible for the timely reading of water meters in the city and distribution of 
bills to residents and businesses. The revenue generated from the utility bills covers the costs 
associated with operating and maintaining the Water Treatment Plant and the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant as well as the maintenance of the city’s distribution and collection systems. 
 
For the month of July 2019, the city processed 228 service requests and saw 15 new 
customers open accounts in Sweet Home. In total, 40 accounts were opened and 41 were 
closed. The city processed 3,271 utility billing statements and 979 past due notices. 58 
accounts were turned off for non-payment on July 10, 2019. 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 136



User:

Printed: 08/22/2019 -  9:21AM

bneish

Bank Reconciliation

Cleared and Not Cleared Checks

Checks by Date

Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

7/2/2019 0 FICA PAYROLL TAXES AP  35,090.42

7/2/2019 0 MEDICARE AP  8,336.94

7/2/2019 0 HSA - PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AP  650.00

7/2/2019 0 Vantagepoint Trf. Agents 108524/109047 AP  25,694.93

7/2/2019 0 OREGON PAYROLL TAXES AP  19,422.81

7/2/2019 0 AFLAC AP  894.14

7/2/2019 0 NATIONWIDE-PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AP  850.00

7/2/2019 0 SWEET HOME POLICE EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION AP  1,360.00

7/2/2019 0 FEDERAL PAYROLL TAXES AP  25,101.38

7/2/2019 0 Vantagepoint Trf. Agents 705507 AP  658.33

7/2/2019 0 CHILD SUPPORT ACCOUNTING UNIT AP  918.00

7/2/2019 0 STANDARD INS. CO. AP  4,076.73

7/2/2019 0 Vantagepoint Trf. Agents 300619 AP  2,940.00

7/2/2019 0 SWEET HOME COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AP  224.13

7/2/2019 0 EBS TRUST AP  81,748.89

7/2/2019 0 FIRST INVESTORS - PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AP  350.00

7/2/2019 0 ASI-PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AP  126.27

7/2/2019 0 PERS AP  12,242.02

7/2/2019 89309 911 SUPPLY AP  147.97

7/2/2019 89310 ACCELA, INC. #774375 AP  150.00

7/2/2019 89311 ALSCO AP  257.32

7/2/2019 89312 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. AP  166.99

7/2/2019 89313 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES AP  63.16

7/2/2019 89314 PAMELA BELTRAMINI AP  33.02

7/2/2019 89315 BENTLEY SYSTEMS, INC. AP  212.75

7/2/2019 89316 BLACKSTONE PUBLISHING AP  199.75

7/2/2019 89317 Branding AP  753.98

7/2/2019 89318 BULLARD LAW AP  12,295.95

7/2/2019 89319 BULLFROG ENTERPRISES AP  150.00

7/2/2019 89320 Canon Financial Services, Inc. AP  417.01

7/2/2019 89321 Cascade Timber Consulting, Inc. AP  153.48

7/2/2019 89322 CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT AP  175.56

7/2/2019 89323 COMCAST AP  166.55

7/2/2019 89324 COMCAST BUSINESS AP  1,663.93

7/2/2019 89325 DAVID M. COREY Ph.D AP  420.00

7/2/2019 89326 Correct Equipment, Inc. AP  18,252.75

7/2/2019 89327 CUB ALBANY PRINTING AP  104.00

7/2/2019 89328 DAN DEE SALES AP  323.00

7/2/2019 89329 DAY MANAGEMENT CORPORATION AP  186.64

7/2/2019 89330 FASTENAL COMPANY AP  254.99

7/2/2019 89331 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3011 - METER ACCT #46780 AP  194.23

7/2/2019 89332 FFA Architecture and Interiors, Inc. AP  1,643.30

7/2/2019 89333 FRANK PRINTING, LLC AP  430.20

7/2/2019 89334 LISA GOURLEY AP  436.82

7/2/2019 89335 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES AP  353.81

7/2/2019 89336 JUNIOR LIBRARY GUILD AP  106.55

BR-Checks by Date (8/22/2019 -  9:21 AM) Page 1

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 137



Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

7/2/2019 89337 KIP AMERICA, INC. AP  240.00

7/2/2019 89338 Les and Bobs Sports and Apparel, Inc. AP  381.00

7/2/2019 89339 Les Schwab Tire Centers of Portland, Inc. AP  113.96

7/2/2019 89340 Library Ideas, LLC AP  669.10

7/2/2019 89341 LINN BENTON TRACTOR CO. AP  303.81

7/2/2019 89342 METEREADERS, LLC AP  1,946.07

7/2/2019 89343 CAROLYN MOFFET AP  6.99

7/2/2019 89344 MOONLIGHT BPO, INC. AP  671.03

7/2/2019 89345 MURRAYSMITH, INC. AP  8,109.00

7/2/2019 89346 TARA NAGELHOUT AP  34.56

7/2/2019 89347 NEW ERA AP  443.63

7/2/2019 89348 NORTHWEST NATURAL AP  192.35

7/2/2019 89349 Nutrien Ag Solutions, Inc. AP  2,905.56

7/2/2019 89350 OFFICE DEPOT AP  165.71

7/2/2019 89351 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AP  3.87

7/2/2019 89352 PASTEGA COFFEE SERVICE AP  122.60

7/2/2019 89353 PETROCARD AP  3,082.70

7/2/2019 89354 Pro Force Law Enforcement AP  137.68

7/2/2019 89355 PROFESSIONAL SECURITY ALARM CO., INC. AP  1,254.50

7/2/2019 89356 JAMES SLATER ROTH AP  105.04

7/2/2019 89357 SAMARITAN HEALTH SERVICES, INC. AP  150.00

7/2/2019 89358 SANTIAM FEED & GARDEN CENTER AP  14.99

7/2/2019 89359 SHAMROCK SUPPLY COMPANY, INC. AP  29.00

7/2/2019 89360 SIERRA SPRINGS AP  96.98

7/2/2019 89361 SOUTH FORK TRADING CO., INC. AP  23.60

7/2/2019 89362 STEVEN STAFFORD AP  13.62

7/2/2019 89363 STAPLES ADVANTAGE AP  1,398.12

7/2/2019 89364 STATE OF OREGON AP  40.00

7/2/2019 89365 SWANK MOTION PICTURES AP  378.00

7/2/2019 89366 SWEET HOME HIGH SCHOOL - DESKTOP AP  50.00

7/2/2019 89367 SYNCB/AMAZON AP  2,387.79

7/2/2019 89368 THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT, LLC AP  4,728.80

7/2/2019 89369 NICKALAUS TURNER AP  63.62

7/2/2019 89370 Wells Fargo AP  35.00

7/2/2019 89371 WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL LEASING AP  734.00

7/2/2019 89372 WILBUR-ELLIS COMPANY LLC AP  42.25

7/2/2019 89373 Z & L ENTERPRISES, LLC AP  236.40

7/2/2019 89374 OREGON AFSCME COUNCIL 75 AP  903.36

7/2/2019 89375 PROFESSIONAL CREDIT SERVICE AP  321.96

7/2/2019 89376 STEELHEAD STRENGTH & FITNESS, LLC AP  652.80

7/2/2019 89377 UNITED WAY AP  50.00

7/5/2019 0 UMPQUA BANK - ACH AP  4,385.42

7/5/2019 0 Cardmember Services AP  3,677.10

7/9/2019 89380 JORDAN BURROUGHS AP  35.22

7/9/2019 89381 Eugene Science Center AP  122.00

7/9/2019 89382 KEVIN GONZALEZ AP  78.40

7/9/2019 89383 RHONDA GRAJIOLA AP  71.92

7/9/2019 89384 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES AP  296.08

7/9/2019 89385 KB & D Productions, Inc. AP  495.00

7/9/2019 89386 RAELYNN LINGENFELTER AP  69.78

7/9/2019 89387 MOONLIGHT BPO, INC. AP  2,281.13

7/9/2019 89388 BRANDON NEISH AP  29.00

7/9/2019 89389 PETROCARD AP  2,371.15

7/9/2019 89390 PETTY CASH - MUNICIPAL COURT AP  575.00

7/9/2019 89391 TAMARA SCHIEDLER AP  84.89

7/9/2019 89392 SWANK MOTION PICTURES AP  423.00

BR-Checks by Date (8/22/2019 -  9:21 AM) Page 2

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 138



Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

7/9/2019 89393 Sweet Home Veterinary Hospital AP  2,300.00

7/9/2019 89394 LOYD THURMAN AP  54.66

7/9/2019 89395 VERIZON WIRELESS AP  1,557.28

7/12/2019 89396 ACCELA, INC. #774375 AP  1,647.00

7/12/2019 89397 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. AP  28.23

7/12/2019 89398 Audio Video Design Group LLC AP  1,500.00

7/12/2019 89399 BI-MART CORPORATION AP  9.99

7/12/2019 89400 BUCK'S SANITARY SERVICE, INC. AP  98.00

7/12/2019 89401 BULLFROG ENTERPRISES AP  700.00

7/12/2019 89402 CENTURYLINK AP  1,458.59

7/12/2019 89403 COMCAST AP  86.90

7/12/2019 89404 COMCAST BUSINESS AP  867.79

7/12/2019 89405 GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, INC. AP  8,800.00

7/12/2019 89406 LINN COUNTY RECORDER AP  95.00

7/12/2019 89407 LINN COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AP  3,020.40

7/12/2019 89408 NATIONAL PHOTOCOPY CORPORATION AP  821.99

7/12/2019 89409 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST AP  1,000.00

7/12/2019 89410 NET ASSETS AP  569.00

7/12/2019 89411 PACIFIC POWER AP  20,118.35

7/12/2019 89412 PETTY CASH - FINANCE OFFICE AP  36.40

7/12/2019 89413 PROFESSIONAL SECURITY ALARM CO., INC. AP  3,504.00

7/12/2019 89414 SAIF CORPORATION AP  75.00

7/12/2019 89415 ROBERT STRATMAN AP  1,247.25

7/12/2019 89416 SUNSHINE INDUSTRIES UNLIMITED, INC. AP  1,300.00

7/12/2019 89417 SWANK MOTION PICTURES AP  283.00

7/12/2019 89418 TWGW, INC. NAPA AUTO PARTS AP  23.56

7/12/2019 89419 WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL LEASING AP  49.00

7/15/2019 89420 SAIF CORPORATION AP  66,611.00

7/17/2019 0 ALEXANDRA MCDONALD AP  12.00

7/17/2019 89421 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES AP  63.16

7/17/2019 89422 Canon Financial Services, Inc. AP  458.71

7/17/2019 89423 CIRCLE K AP  20.00

7/17/2019 89424 COMCAST AP  633.98

7/17/2019 89425 DAN DEE SALES AP  856.99

7/17/2019 89426 DEMCO AP  265.50

7/17/2019 89427 DEPT. OF CONSUMER AND BUSINESS SERVICES AP  10,017.88

7/17/2019 89428 PATRICK DUNCAN AP  55.72

7/17/2019 89429 EBSCO Industries, Inc. AP  8.98

7/17/2019 89430 Edge Analytical, Inc. AP  335.00

7/17/2019 89431 EQUINOX SOFTWARE, INC. AP  1,000.00

7/17/2019 89432 JULIE FISHER AP  15.00

7/17/2019 89433 GIDEON FREUDMANN AP  500.00

7/17/2019 89434 GATEWAY IMPRINTS, INC. AP  43.50

7/17/2019 89435 GBC Construction, LLC AP  53,056.41

7/17/2019 89436 Grainger, Inc. AP  73.90

7/17/2019 89437 HAL'S DELIVERY SERVICE AP  1,667.25

7/17/2019 89438 ASHLEI HAND AP  50.33

7/17/2019 89439 Desi Housley AP  70.00

7/17/2019 89440 HOY'S TRUE VALUE AP  391.78

7/17/2019 89441 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL AP  247.97

7/17/2019 89442 LIBERTY ROCK PRODUCTS, INC. AP  623.35

7/17/2019 89443 Linn County Road Department AP  35.00

7/17/2019 89444 CHAYHOWA MCELHINNY AP  35.00

7/17/2019 89445 MURRAYSMITH, INC. AP  6,711.50

7/17/2019 89446 NATIONAL PHOTOCOPY CORPORATION AP  34.41

7/17/2019 89447 NEW ERA AP  4,289.12

BR-Checks by Date (8/22/2019 -  9:21 AM) Page 3

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 139



Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

7/17/2019 89448 O & M POINT S TIRE & AUTO SERVICE, INC. AP  754.62

7/17/2019 89449 OFFICE DEPOT AP  15.00

7/17/2019 89450 ONE CALL CONCEPTS AP  46.20

7/17/2019 89451 OREGON DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY AP  825.00

7/17/2019 89452 OVERDRIVE AP  4,208.26

7/17/2019 89453 PATRICIA PERRYMAN AP  150.10

7/17/2019 89454 PETROCARD AP  2,469.87

7/17/2019 89455 CYNTHIA PICHARDO AP  300.00

7/17/2019 89456 Pro Force Law Enforcement AP  2,661.69

7/17/2019 89457 RJM EQUIPMENT SALES, INC. AP  16,872.00

7/17/2019 89458 SAMARITAN HEALTH SERVICES, INC. AP  36.00

7/17/2019 89459 Lori Seiber AP  40.00

7/17/2019 89460 SHAMROCK SUPPLY COMPANY, INC. AP  69.00

7/17/2019 89461 SIERRA SPRINGS AP  68.55

7/17/2019 89462 Scott Snedeker AP  4,290.00

7/17/2019 89463 ROBERT SNYDER AP  41.50

7/17/2019 89464 SOUTH FORK TRADING CO., INC. AP  23.60

7/17/2019 89465 Stepper Consulting, Inc. AP  9,796.00

7/17/2019 89466 SWEET HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT #55 AP  89.52

7/17/2019 89467 THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT, LLC AP  4,829.70

7/17/2019 89468 TWGW, INC. NAPA AUTO PARTS AP  919.48

7/17/2019 89469 US MINI MART AP  6.00

7/17/2019 89470 VALLEY CONTRACTORS SUPPLY AP  9,010.00

7/17/2019 89471 VALLEY FIRE CONTROL, INC. AP  598.35

7/17/2019 89472 WATERSHED, INC. AP  1,081.08

7/17/2019 89473 Wells Fargo AP  20.00

7/17/2019 89474 WELLS FARGO BANK 706800 AP  30.00

7/17/2019 89475 WELLS FARGO VENDOR FIN SERV AP  157.93

7/17/2019 89476 WILDISH SAND & GRAVEL CO. AP  95.54

Total Check Count:  187

Total Check Amount:  567,573.06

BR-Checks by Date (8/22/2019 -  9:21 AM) Page 4

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 140



 

  

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 141



 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 142



SWEET HOME POLICE DEPARTMENT 

                                                                                                                                                         CHIEF OF POLICE 

                                                                                                                                                        1950 Main Street 

                                                                                                                                                        Sweet Home, OR 97386 
                                                                                                                                                         (541) 367-5181   Fax (541) 367-5235 

 

 
                     07/31/2019   07/31/2018 % Change 

Call Volume:   2019-04942  2018-05605           -11.83%      

CAD Calls:             10206            10641             -4.09%    

ONIBR Person Crimes      107    104        2.88%                     

ONIBR Person Crimes Cleared:                  68      69                

ONIBR Property Crimes:                235    392        -40.05% 

ONIBR Property Crimes Cleared:                57       133           

Jamboree statistics – From the perspective of the Sweet Home Police Department, the Oregon 

Jamboree was a complete success. Illegal activity and the SHPD call load was down from previous years. 

We experienced a reduction in calls and arrests even with the larger crowds. Attached is a breakdown of 

calls for service and arrests during the previous four (4) years of the Oregon Jamboree weekend. We are 

working with the Sweet Home Fire and Ambulance District to improve our emergency response and 

preparedness for next year. Some of the changes and improvements may involve moving the Police 

Command to a better position as well as co-locating police, fire and crowd management in nearby 

locations.  

Detective position – We have reached a point in our staffing where we have been able to fill our second 

Detective position. On Monday (08/19/19) Officer Keenan Martin started his Temporary Duty 

Assignment in Detectives. His primary role will be to assist patrol officers with their investigations. The 

investigations that he is assigned to will be based on their priority, with Child Abuse and other person 

crimes being most urgent. This added Detective position will alleviate some of the workload from 

Detective Pichardo. Detective Pichardo should now be freed up to focus on narcotics crimes and 

activities within Sweet Home and the surrounding area.  

DUII regional/department training – On 08/19/19 and 08/20/19 the Sweet Home Police Department 

hosted a regional training sponsored by the Department of Public Safety and Standards Training 

(DPSST). The training was a “refresher” course in DUII investigations. All of our patrol officers attended 

the training.  

 

 

 

 

 
City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 143



 Person Crimes are defined as: 
 
                                      July 2019              July 2018              
 
Assault    9   4 
Child Neglect    0   0 
Criminal Homicide   0   0 
Custodial Interference   1   0 
Elder Abuse    0   0 
Forcible Rape    0   0 
Harassment    6   6 
Kidnapping    0   0  
Menacing    1   2 
Other Sex Offense   0   0 
Violation Restraining Order  4   2 

 
 

Property Crimes are defined as:  

                                      July 2019              July 2018 
 
Arson     0   0 
Burglary    4   1 
Criminal Mischief               7               5 
Forgery    1   1 
Fraud     2   4  
Motor Vehicle Theft   1   1 
Reckless Burning   0   0 
Recovered Stolen   1   0 
Robbery    0   1 
Theft               34             54 

  

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 144



OREGON JAMBOREE STATISTICS

JAM RELATED CITY WIDE

CALLS FOR SERVICE THURS THRU MON 2019 2018 2017 2016 2019 2018 2017 2016

AGENCY ASSIST    10 13 12 9

ALARM  1 1 2 2 9 7

AMBULANCE ASSIST 1   1 1 1 3

ANIMAL 2 1 1 11 9 16 16

ANIMAL-WILDLIFE 1 2

ASSAULT 4 0 1 1

BURGLARY 1 0 1

CITY CODE VIOLATIONS  5 2

CIVIL 1 3 2 1

CUSTODIAL INTERFERENCE 1

CRIMINAL MISCHIEF 1 4 4 5

CRIMINAL TRESPASS   2 2 1 1 5

CURFEW 1

DEATH INVESTIGATION 2 1

DETOX 2

DISORDERLY CONDUCT 1

DISTURBANCE 5 1 7 6 18 6 26 21

DRUG INFORMATION 1

DUII 1 1 1 3

EXCLUSION-CITY PROPERTY 1

FINGERPRINTS 3 3

FIRE ASSIST 1

FLEEING OR ATTEMPT TO ELUDE 1

HARASSMENT  1 3 2 2

HAZARD 1 2 1 1

HERION POSSESSION 3 1

HIT AND RUN PROP DAMAGE 2 1 1 1 1 1 3

ILLEGAL BURN 1

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 145



OREGON JAMBOREE STATISTICS

IMPOUND 2

INFORMATION 1 1 3 3 17 16 25 11

JUVENILE 1 3 6 2 4

LICENSING 1

MENACING 1

MENTAL 2

METH POSSESSION 1 1 1 1

MINOR IN POSSESSION OF ALCOHOL  1 9 1 9

MINOR IN POSSESSION OF TOBACCO 1

MOTOR VEHICLE CRASH 1  1 1 3 2 6 5

NEIGHBORHOOD DISPUTE 2

PARKING  2 7 4 10

PLACE OFFENSIVE SUBSTANCE WATERWAY 1

POLICE OFFICER HOLD 1

PROPERTY 2 4 3 5 10 12 16 17

PUBLIC ASSIST 1 2 2 2 8 9 19 8

REGISTRATION SEX OFFENDER 1 1 3 1

RESISTING ARREST 1

RESTRAINING ORDER VIOLATION 1 2

RUNAWAY JUVENILE 1 1

SEX OFFENSE 1 1 1 1

SUICIDE ATTEMPT 1 1

SUSPICIOUS ACTIVITY 5 3 10 6 29 22 37 26

THEFT 2 6 6 2 6 6 10 11

TRAFFIC 1 17 17 15 17

TRESPASS WARNING 4 2 1 5 6 2

UNLAWFUL ENTRY IN MOTOR VEHICLE 2 1 1 3

UNLAWFUL USE OF MOTOR VEHICLE 1 3

UNSECURE PREMISE 1 1

VIOLATION CITY ORDINANCE 6 1 1 9 7 9 5

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 146



OREGON JAMBOREE STATISTICS

WARRANT ARREST 6 9 9 9

WEAPON OFFENSE 1

TOTAL 35 24 41 49 167 173 269 226

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 147



JAMBOREE WEEKEND ARRESTS

CITY WIDE

ARREST CHARGES THURS-MON 2019 2018 2017 2016

ASSAULT 2

BURGLARY 1

CRIMINAL MISCHIEF 1

CRIMINAL TRESPASS 1 1 1 3

CURFEW 1 2

DETOX 2

DISORDERLY CONDUCT 1 2 1

DRIVE UNDER INFLUENCE 2 1 2

FAIL REGISTER AS SEX OFFENDER 1

FALSE INFO 2 1

FLEEING OR ATTEMPT TO ELUDE 1 1

FRAUD 4

HARASSMENT 2 1 1

HERION POSSESSION 1 1

INTEREFERE WITH POLICE OFFICER 1

METH POSSESSION 4 1 2 3

MINOR IN POSSESSION OF ALCOHOL 1 5

MINOR IN POSSESSION OF TOBACCO 1 1

POLICE OFFICER HOLD 1 1 3

RECKLESS ENDANGER 1

RESISTING 1 1

RESTRAINING ORDER VIOLATION 1

THEFT 2 2

TRAFFIC OFFENSE 2 1 5

UNAUTHORIZED USE OF MOTOR VEHICLE 3

WARRANT ARREST 18 20 21 7

TOTAL 25 48 37 37

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 148



 

 
 

 

 
 
Date:  August 20th, 2019 
 
To:  City Manager Ray Towry 
 
From:  Chief Jeff Lynn 
 
Re:  Downtown Traffic Enforcement 
 
 
I understand that questions and concerns continue to arise over the flow of traffic in Sweet 
Home’s downtown corridor. Most of the concerns revolve around the speed of vehicles on Main 
Street. I know that we have had several discussions about what SHPD’s response will be 
regarding these concerns and I wanted to take this opportunity to explain what our approach will 
be. Our response will be broken down into three phases: public education, data collection and 
enforcement. Each of these phases will be discussed below.  
 
Public education and information will continue through our initial response to these concerns. 
Prior to the start of the data collection, public service announcements will be sent out. I will work 
closely with Lagea in crafting the information going out. It should be a multi-faceted approach to 
include web presence, social media, news articles and possibly some info videos. The hope is 
to raise awareness of the concerns and to provide notice that additional enforcement is on the 
way. The public education will continue during the data collection and enforcement phases.  
 
Data collection can play a significant role in determining the validity of the traffic speed concerns 
and our Department’s response. Because of our limited resources, identifying the problem areas 
in the downtown corridor will allow us to focus our enforcement efforts. Our Department, 
particularly Sgt. Van Eck, has worked closely with the Public Works Department and six TC-400 
Portable Radar Speed Signs from Radar Signs have been ordered. They will allow for the 
gathering of vital traffic information such as speed and volume that will help us determine the 
best response. These signs are moveable and will be able to be relocated as needs arise.  
 

 
 
Initially, four signs will be placed in the downtown area. During the first 2 – 4 weeks of the signs 
being placed, the digital readout function on the signs will not be activated. Even though the 

City of Sweet Home 
1950 Main Street 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 

541-367-5181 

Fax 541-367-5235 

www.sweethomeor.gov 

shpd@sweethomeor.gov 

 

Sweet Home Police Department 

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 149



digital readouts are not displayed, the signs will be collecting data. After an appropriate sample 
size of traffic flow, the digital readouts will be turned on. Again, data will continue to be collected 
and we hope to have some indication on how effective the signs themselves are at controlling 
traffic speeds. We will again gather data for a similar amount of time as mentioned above, 2 – 4 
weeks. The data collected will be reviewed and forwarded to yourself, the Council and the 
community as part of our public education efforts.  
 
After the predetermined amount of data has been collected and reviewed, a significant increase 
in traffic enforcement is planned. Our goal is to assign an officer(s) to traffic enforcement duties. 
Obviously staffing levels will dictate how often an officer(s) can assume the traffic enforcement 
position. As part of the enforcement phase, Sgt. Wingo has recommended that we employ a 
motorcycle traffic enforcement position. I have attached a brief memo from Sgt. Wingo outlining 
the basics of the motorcycle position. The cost would be minimal, and it would allow for easier, 
quicker mobility in the downtown area. Also, it provides another opportunity for an interested 
officer.  
 
I anticipate that the traffic data that is collected will drive this response. I look forward to talking 
to you about our response further.  

City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 150



City Council Packet 08-27-19 pg. 151


	(a) City Council Agenda 08-27-19
	(C)(a)(1) 08-13-19 Council Minutes
	(C)(a)(2) City Council 08-13-19 Admin & Finance
	(C)(b)(1) RCA - Appointment Libary Board -Donnell
	(c)(b)(2) Brittney Donnell Library Adv. Board Application 2019
	(C)(c)(1) RCA - Appointment Park and Tree Commission - Curtis
	(c)(c)(2) James Curtis Park and Tree Application 2019
	(C)(d)(1) RCA - Foster Lake Market #1 Liquor License
	(C)(d)(2) 2019 OLCC App for New Owner - 8-5 - AVIV Inc Foster Lake Market
	(E)(a)(1) Proposed ATV Ordinance
	(E)(b)(1) Livability Ord 08-27-19
	(E)(c)(1) Unnecessary Noise 08-27-19
	(E)(d)(1) Public Peace, Safety, Health Property and Welfare 08-27-19
	(E)(e)(1) 2019-08-22 City Council memo - regional composting facility
	(F)(a)(1) 2019 Peer Court IGA RCA
	(F)(a)(2) How it works
	(F)(a)(3) 2019 Peer Court IGA
	(F)(b)(1) RCA - Supplemental Budget - CEO Vehicle
	(F)(b)(2) CEO Supplemental Resolution 22
	(F)(c)(1) RCA -Supplemental Budget - City Hall Furniture and Sign
	(F)(c)(2) BR  Supplemental Resolution 23
	(F)(c)(3) Fund 310 - Bldg Reserve
	(F)(c)(4) Itemized Proposal
	(F)(c)(5) 29368A
	Page 1

	(F)(c)(6) 29368A1
	Page 1

	(F)(c)(7) 29368A2
	Page 1

	(F)(d)(1) RCA- Community Development Block Grant
	(F)(d)(2) Resolution No. 24 for 2019 CDBG
	(H)(1) Leg Com 081319
	(I)(d)(i)(1) July 2019
	(I)(d)(i)(2) July 2019 Checks
	(i)(D)(i)(3)(1) Monthly Rev-Exp Reports
	(I)(d)(ii)(1) 07-31-19 COUNCIL STATISTICS
	(I)(d)(ii)(2) Oregon Jamboree Statistics
	(I)(d)(ii)(3) Jamboree Weekend Arrests
	(I)(d)(ii)(4) Downtown Traffic Memo
	(z) Comcast Notice 08-27-19



